
 8/22/2018: ADDED ATTACHMENT TO SR 5.A.

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Thursday, August 23, 2018 - 2:00 PM

1000 Main Street Cambria, CA 93428

AGENDA
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business
hours. The agenda and agenda packets are also available on the CCSD website at www.cambriacsd.org.
The District Office hours are Monday - Thursday, and every other Friday from 9:00 a.m. through 4:00 p.m.
Please call 805-927-6223 if you need any assistance. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents
shall be made available in alternative formats to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any
questions regarding the agenda.

1. OPENING

A. Call to Order

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Establishment of Quorum

D. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item)

A. Sheriff's Department Report

B. CCSD Fire Chief's Report

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion additional
comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.)

Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction of the Board but
not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot discuss or act on items not on the
agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips (available at the entry) should be submitted to the
District Clerk.

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to discuss a consent
item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be made. Such items are pulled for
separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a whole is acted upon.

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE JULY 2018 EXPENDITURE REPORT

1

http://


B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE JULY 11, 2018, JULY 12, 2018 AND JULY 23, 2018
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND JULY 26, 2018 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

C. CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT DONN HOWELL TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE
COMMITTEE TO FILL THE VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF MURIL
CLIFT

5. HEARINGS AND APPEALS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO DISCUSS AND ADOPT RESOLUTION 26-2018 APPROVING
THE FINAL CCSD BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019

6. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item)

A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF INTER-FUND LOAN
AGREEMENT AND PROVIDING DIRECTION REGARDING POLICY FOR FUTURE
INTER-FUND LOANS

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT POLICY B-02-18

7. BOARD MEMBER, COMMITTEE & LIAISON REPORTS

A. Board Member, Committee and Liaison Reports

8. MANAGER REPORTS

A. General Manager's Report

B. Finance Manager's Report

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes)

Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or request a formal
agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal action can be taken except to
direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda by majority vote.

10. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (Estimated time: 60 Minutes)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957
Title: General Manager

B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8
Property APN: 013-151-031
Property Negotiators: County of San Luis Obispo, Phil Acosta
Agency Negotiators, General Manager and District Counsel
Negotiation: Price and Terms (Public Road, Slope and Temporary Construction Easements)

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. Gruber and
Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Group: International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF)

D. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. Gruber and
Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Organization: Services Employee International Union

E. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives:  General Manager, Jerry D. Gruber and
Shelline Bennett, LCW; Unrepresented group, Management and Confidential Exempt
Employees

F. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(4) involving one potential case.

2



Cambria CSD Fire Department  
August 23, 2018 CCSD Board Meeting 

August 2018 

Prevention and Education 

• 2 Residential rough/hydro inspections were completed 

• 4 Fire final inspections 

• 0 Residential site visits for building questions 

• 7 Fire plan reviews 

o 5498 Windsor

o 579 Weymouth

o 1145 Pinewood

o Lodge Christmas Village

o 2455 Pierce

o 968 Suffolk

o 1763 Arliss

• 6 Engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted

• 1 Public education events

• 4 Residential smoke/carbon monoxide detectors were installed and or the batteries changed

• 2 Fire Engine and Station tours

Hydrants Maintenance & Testing 

Date Water Used Hydrants Completed Hours 

2017 5,418 98 98 

January - May 0 115 88 

July 0 4 3 

Total 5,418 217 189 

Meetings and Affiliations 

• Fire Inspector 2A training July 8th-10th Sacramento 

• SLO County Chiefs mtg July 11th, 0900 Paso Robles 

• Firesafe Council mtg July 18th, 0900 South Bay 

• Fire Inspector 2B training July 22nd-25th Sacramento 

• CCSD Board mtg July 26th, 1400 Cambria 

• Battalion Chief Interview Panel July 30th, 1130 Arroyo Grande 

• Fire Ad Hoc mtg July 30th, 1400 Cambria 

  Operations and News 

• Training hours: 57 hours, Training for the month of July was primarily focused on the following topics:

o EMS review of intubation, CPR and EKG

o Engineer training

o Master Streams

o Annual Wildland fire review

Grant Updates 

• SAFER grant returned

• Radio grant declined

• Image Trend grant awarded for county

Fire Statistics are attached for your review 

S.R. 2.B.3



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18  Totals

Fire 0 1 0 0 3 1 1 6

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical 48 38 41 49 43 30 52 301

(local patients/percentage) 40/83.3% 29/76.3% 36/87.8% 44/90% 33/76.7% 21/70% 40/76.9% 243/80.7%

(non-local patients/percentage 8/16.7% 9/23.7% 5/12.2% 5/10% 10/23.3% 9/30% 12/23.1% 58/19.3%

Ocean Rescue 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

Cliff Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicle TC 3 1 1 3 0 1 0 9

Hazardous Situations 5 7 9 4 5 2 1 33

Public Service Assist 17 21 18 17 6 12 19 110

False Alarms 15 14 16 9 5 24 16 99

Agency Assist 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mutual Aid 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 3

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire - In County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Ocean Rescue - In County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Cliff Rescue - In County) 1 0 0 2 0 0 3

(Vegetation Fire - Out of County) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Auto Aid 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 4

(Structure Fire) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Vegetation Fire) 0 0 0 0 1 0 3 4

(Vehicle Accident) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Investigations 0 1 0 0 3 1 1 6

Monthly Response Totals 85 83 84 79 68 70 93 0 0 0 0 0 562

S.R. 2.B.4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, July 11, 2018 10:00 AM 
 
1. OPENING 
 
A. Call to Order 
 
President Rice called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
C. Establishment of Quorum 
 
Board Members present: Amanda Rice, Jim Bahringer, Harry Farmer and David Pierson. 
 
Finance Committee members present: David Pierson, Ted Siegler, Cindy Steidel, Dewayne Lee 
and Amanda Rice. 
 
Infrastructure Committee members present: Jim Bahringer, Karen Dean, Mike Lyons, Muril Clift 
and Harry Farmer. 
 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique 
Madrid and District Engineer Bob Gresens. 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS (LIMITED TO 30 MINUTES) 
 
Public Comment: 
Crosby Swartz: SWF running 
Tina Dickason: June 21 meeting 3rd rate study presentation 
 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
A. Finance Committee Leads Discussion on Process and Policies to Set in Place for the 
Implementation of the Capital Improvement Program.   
 
Public Comment: 
Dennis Perry spoke 3 times: policies benchmarks and milestones 
Tina Dickason spoke 3 times: legal fees spent on harassment and retaliation 
Cheryl McDowell 
Speaker Unknown 
Karen Pierson: finance committee and freeze salaries 
 
Committee Member Pierson stated we need policies in place to assure the community.  
 

1. CIP policy 
2. Policy on budget and approval, role of finance committee. 
3. Rate information in the budget. We should have a rate study every three years. 
4. Reserve policy: update revision, begin setting aside money. CSDA recommended a 

reserve policy. He recommends these items be on the committees next agendas. 
 

17



 

 

Committee Member Rice stated the goal for the October meeting is to have a referral on this 
policy from the two committees. 
 
Committee Member Bahringer suggested having each committee present one agenda item 
each month and by the September Board meeting, have a CIP policy for review by the Board of 
Directors. 
  
Committee Member Farmer stated we shouldn’t wait. 
 
Committee Member Dean asked that both committees be able to interact and have quarterly 
meetings like this one. 
 
Committee Member Clift stated the Board makes decisions and gives direction to committees. 
He asked the Board to provide their expectations. 
 
Committee Member Pierson moved to recommend that the Board go forward or not go forward 
with the rate increase. 
 
Committee Member Bahringer moved to go forward with option B as it’s presented by Alex 
Handler and adjusted by the previous motion by Board approval for annual adjustments.  
 
Committee Member Lyons seconded the motion. 
 
Committee Member Rice didn’t feel it was appropriate for five Board members to vote on this 
item. 
 
Committee Member Bahringer withdrew his motion. 
 
B. Infrastructure Committee Reviews Capital Improvement Program and Provides 
Recommendations of their last Meeting and Discusses the Status and Need for the 
Capital Improvement Program Individual Line Items.   
 
The committee discussed the Capital Improvement Program and the status and need for Capital 
Improvement Program individual items. 
 
Public Comment: 
Donn Howell 
 
C. Finance Committee Reviews Rate Study Alternative B. 
 
The committee discussed Rate Study Alternative B. 
 
Public Comment: 
Donn Howell 
 
D. The Committees Summarize Rate Recommendations for the July 12, 2018 Special 
Board Meeting.  
 
Public Comment: 
Donn Howell 
Laura Swartz 
 
Committee Member Bahringer moved that both committees recommend the full Board place in 
resolution rate increases to be approved by the board annually. 

18



 

 

 
Committee Member Siegler seconded the motion. 
 
Motion Passed: 9-Ayes, 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Clift)  
 
Committee Member Lyons stated he agreed that the Cambrian’s main goal is water security. 
Most of this is in three infrastructure components, Water, SWF and Wastewater. These will help 
us avoid catastrophic failure. Finding fault with others is not helpful and not making 
improvements and continuing with delays is costly in the long term. Delaying is not productive. 
Public Trust is an important matter.  
 
Committee Member Siegler stated today’s questions and discussions did not result in any 
objections to the listed CIP projects. All agreed there are deteriorating facilities. There has been 
criticism of management.  
 
E. ADJOURN 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:25 p.m.  

19



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, July 12, 2018 3:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

Vice President Bahringer called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Vice President Bahringer led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

Board present: Jim Bahringer, Harry Farmer, Aaron Wharton and David Pierson. 
 
Absent: Amanda Rice. 

 
Staff Present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, Administrative Services Officer/District 

Clerk Monique Madrid, District Engineer Bob Gresens and Interim Finance Manager 

Alleyne LaBossiere. 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Public Comment: 
None. 

 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 
A. RECEIVE AND DISCUSS WATER, SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY AND SEWER 

RATE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES, AND 
CONSIDER PROPOSED WATER, SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY AND SEWER 
RATES AND SET A PROPOSITION 218 PROTEST HEARING DATE 

 
Vice President Bahringer introduced the item and took public comment. 
 
Public Comment: 
Mike Lyons 
Mel Dorn 
Tina Dickason 
Crosby Swartz  
Don Archer  
Donn Howell 
Dewayne Lee 
  
Director Farmer expressed agreement with nearly all who spoke during public comment. 

He stated he’s reluctant to vote for a rate increase unless the majority of the money went 

to the Wastewater Department and a small amount to Water Department, but zero to the 

Sustainable Water Facility. 

 

Director Wharton moved to select proposed Alternative B for water, SWF and sewer 
rates with any annual increases subject to Board approval and to set a Proposition 218 
hearing date on August 30, 2018. 

20



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Nay 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
President Rice- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 3-Ayes (Wharton, Pierson, Bahringer), 1-Nay (Farmer), 1-Absent (Rice) 

 

B. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 20-2018 UPDATING THE 
ASSIGNMENT OF BANKING POWERS FOR CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT 

 

Vice President Bahringer introduced the item and turned it over to the General Manager, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. 

 

Director Pierson moved to adopt Resolution 20-2018 updating the CCSD banking 
powers. 
 
Director Wharton seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
President Rice- Absent 
 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Pierson, Wharton, Farmer, Bahringer), 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Rice) 
 

4. ADJOURN 
 

Vice President Bahringer adjourned the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 

 
 

21



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, July 23, 2018 10:00 AM 
 

1. OPENING 
 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

President Rice called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.  
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

Directors present: Amanda Rice, Jim Bahringer, Aaron Wharton and David Pierson.  
 
Absent: Harry Farmer. 
 
Staff present: Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid and Interim 
Finance Manager Alleyne LaBossiere. 

 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Public Comment: 
None. 

 
3. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A LETTER OF SUPPORT 

AND COMPLIANCE TO THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
FOR THE STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
(SAFER) GRANT APPLICATION 

 
President Rice introduced the item and provided a brief summary.  
 
Captain Gibson provided information on behalf of the Fire Chief. 

 
Captain Torlano clarified which questions were previously answered in the letter. 

 
Public Comment: 
Ted Siegler  
Jerry Wood 
Tom Gray 
Bev Praver 
Jo Ellen Butler 
Michael Calderwood 
Barbara Bronson Gray 

 
President Rice would like a Fire Standing Committee and stated that it would be helpful 

to have a different letter to FEMA stating the CCSD had good intentions, but has to 

withdraw or that CCSD cannot support the matching funds at this time. 
 

Director Pierson stated the letter is poor and doesn't answer FEMA’s questions. It is 
fiscally irresponsible to go forward with the grant approval letter. 

 

22



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

Director Bahringer stated it was a positive letter, that we pass on receiving the grant and 
hope to be considered in the future. 

 
Director Bahringer moved to withdraw the application, authorize a letter of non-support 
due to present fiscal constraints and the recent ballot measure failure. 

 

Director Pierson seconded the motion. 
 

Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Bahringer, Pierson, Wharton, Rice), 0-Nays, 1-Absent (Farmer)  

 
4. ADJOURN 

 
President Rice adjourned the meeting at 11:15 a.m.  

23



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, July 26, 2018 2:00 PM 
 

1. OPENING 
A. Call to Order 
 
President Rice called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m. 

 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
President Rice led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. Establishment of Quorum 
 

A quorum was established. 
 

Directors present: Amanda Rice, Jim Bahringer, Harry Farmer and David Pierson. 
 
Aaron Wharton arrived at 2:21 p.m. 

 
Staff present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, District Counsel Timothy Carmel, 

Administrative Services Officer/District Clerk Monique Madrid and Interim Finance 

Manager Alleyne LaBossiere. 

D. Agenda Review: Additions/Deletions 
 

President Rice asked the Board for any additions and deletions. There were none. 
 

2. PUBLIC SAFETY (Estimated time 5 Minutes per item) 
 

A. Sheriff's Department Report 
 

Commander Voge provided a summary of recent activities in Cambria for the Sheriff's 
Department and on an upcoming workshop covering Active Shooter matters. 
 

B. CCSD Fire Chief's Report 
 

CCSD Fire Chief William Hollingsworth provided a report of recent activities in Cambria. 
 

President Rice commended Captain Torlano for her work on the SAFER Grant even 
though we were not able to accept it. 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Estimated time 30 minutes. At President's discretion 

additional comments may be heard at the end of the meeting.) 
 

Public Comment: 
Karen Dean  
Sherry Bell 
Dennis Perry 
Tina Dickason 
Donn Howell  

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 

A. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE JUNE 2018 EXPENDITURE REPORT 
 

24



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

B. CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT THE JUNE 12, 2018, JUNE 19, 2018 AND JUNE 
21, 2018 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES AND JUNE 28, 2018 REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
C. CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT THE CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

RESULTS OF CANVASS OF ALL VOTES CAST FOR CAMBRIA COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT MEASURE A-18 CONSOLIDATED PRIMARY ELECTION 
JUNE 5, 2018 

 
Director Farmer congratulated staff for getting with the RWQCB to reduce the lab tests 
and the associated costs.  

 
Public Comment:  
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 
Donn Howell 

Tina Dickason 
 

Vice President Bahringer moved to approve the consent agenda. Director Wharton 
seconded the motion. 
  
Roll Call Vote:  
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye  
Director Farmer- Aye  
Director Pierson- Aye  
President Rice- Aye 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 
5. HEARINGS AND APPEALS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 

A. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 21-2018 
ORDERING ABATEMENT OF PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR THE FIRE HAZARD 
FUEL REDUCATION PROGRAM (FHFRP) 

 
General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. 

 

President Rice opened the public hearing. 
 

Public Comment: 
Tina Dickason  

 
Board discussion followed.  
 
Chief Hollingsworth provided answers to some questions. 

 

President Rice closed the public hearing. 
 

Vice President Bahringer moved to adopt Resolution 21-2018 ordering abatement of 
public nuisance for the Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program (FHFRP) and to eliminate 
the last “whereas” and Section 3 of the resolution. 

 

President Rice seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

25



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 

 

Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 
6. REGULAR BUSINESS (Estimated time: 15 Minutes per item) 

 

A. DISCUSS AND REVIEW PATHWAY FOR ESTABLISHING STAGE 3 

CONSERVATION MEASURES AND IMPLEMENTING USE OF THE 

SUSTAINABLE WATER FACILITY 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. 

 

Public Comment:  
Crosby Swartz 
Ted Key  
Elizabeth Bettenhausen  
Tina Dickason  
Mike Lyons 

 

Board discussion followed. 
 
President Rice stated this is an informational item. 
 
There was no Board action taken on this item. 

 

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT INFLUENT SCREEN INSTALLATION 

PROJECT 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. 

 
Public Comment:  
Ted Key 
Tina Dickason 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved to award the contract for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Influent Screen Installation Project to Brough Construction, increase funding for the 
project from $150,000 to $164,509 and authorize the General Manager to execute the 
contract in a form acceptable to District Counsel. 
 
Director Farmer seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

 

Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 

26



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

C. CONTINUED DICUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO EXTEND THE 
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES WITH BALANCE PUBLIC 
RELATIONS FOR AN ADDITIONAL SIX MONTHS 

 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and provided a brief summary of the 
item. 

 

Public Comment: 
Sherry Bell  
Tina Dickason  
Donn Howell 
Ted Key 
Dennis Perry 

 
Board discussion followed. 
 
Vice President Bahringer moved that we approve Mr. Florez’s contract as described in 
the General Manager’s summary. 
 
President Rice seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Nay 
President Rice- Nay 
Director Wharton- Nay 
Director Farmer- Nay 
Director Pierson- Nay 

 
Motion Failed: 0-Ayes, 5-Nays, 0-Absent 
 
D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 24-2018 

AMENDING SECTION 7.2 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BYLAWS 
RELATING TO BOARD MEMBER INVOLVEMENT IN PERSONNEL MATTERS 

 
District Counsel introduced the item, read some of the requirements and provided some 
legal guidance regarding any responses to questions. 
 
Public Comment: 
Sherry Bell 
Donn Howell  
Tina Dickason  
Elizabeth Bettenhausen 

Mike Lyons  
Mike Calderwood  
Jerry McKinnon 
 
Board discussion followed. 
 
Director Farmer moved to continue the meeting until 7:00 p.m.  

 
Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion. 

 
Roll Call Vote: 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

27



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 
Director Wharton moved to adopt Resolution 24-2018 amending section 7.2 of the Board 

of Directors bylaws relating to Board member involvement in personnel matters. 
 

Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Farmer- Nay 
President Rice- Aye 

 
Motion Passed: 4-Ayes (Wharton, Bahringer, Pierson, Rice), 1-Nay (Farmer), 0-Absent 

 

E. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF IDENTIFYING TASKS AND 

PROVIDING DIRECTION TO THE FINANCE COMMITTEE AND 

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and gave a brief summary and asked 
for any questions. 

 

Vice President Bahringer referenced the number of BRP Committee members and felt 
that if the two committees (Finance and Infrastructure) were combined, they could have 
subcommittees perform various work. He also announced that Muril Clift had resigned 
from the Infrastructure Committee. 
 
Director Pierson suggested the Finance Committee look at allocations and percentages 
and develop recommendations if there need to be changes, review the 2018/2019 
permanent budget in August with a recommendation to the Board to adopt or not to 
adopt, create a policy on the budget and revise the policy on reserves. These policies 
should be brought back to the full Board no later than the October regular meeting. 
 
Director Pierson suggested the Infrastructure Committee look at formulating policies on 
the CIP and asset management and bringing those back to the full Board no later than 
the October regular meeting. 

 

Public Comment: 
Cindy Steidel  

 
President Rice moved to approve Director Pierson’s recommendations. 
 
Vice President Bahringer seconded the motion 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
President Rice- Aye 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 

 
Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 

 

F. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT POLICY B-01-18 
ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR BOARD INTERACTION WITH STAFF 

 

28



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and gave a brief summary and asked 
for any questions. 

 

The Board feels it is unnecessary.  
  
President Rice stated she’s a little disappointed with starting a policy manual on a 
restriction rather than an allowance. She would like the General Manager to bring a 
policy that benefits either revenues or most benefits public and customer 
support/interaction with the public or support issues of expenditures in relation to setting 
things up. It seems the General Manager could bring a policy that is supportive of the 
community and Board. 
 
Public Comment: 
Donn Howell 

 

Director Farmer concurs with what President Rice said and would like to see a positive 
policy. 

 
G. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN SAN 

LUIS OBISPO COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES STUDY 
 

President Rice presented the matter and asked the Board to support her position of 
participating with the County. 

 

Vice President Bahringer moved that we indicate our participation and assign Director 
Pierson as the liaison along with Chief Hollingsworth and the General Manager. 
 
Director Pierson seconded the motion. 

 

Roll Call Vote: 
Vice President Bahringer- Aye 
Director Pierson- Aye 
Director Wharton- Aye 
Director Farmer- Aye 
President Rice- Aye 

 

Motion Passed Unanimously: 5-Ayes, 0-Nays, 0-Absent 
 
H. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE REAL PROPERTY 

TRANSFER AGREEMENT WITH THE LAND CONSERVANCY OF SAN LUIS 
OBISPO COUNTY FOR THE TRANSFER OF THREE (3) LOTS 

 
General Manager Jerry Gruber introduced the item and turned it over to District Counsel, 
who gave a brief summary and asked for any questions. He suggested the Board create 
a condition that stipulates lots are to be cleared and trees to be removed if they decide 
to take them and then asked for any questions. 
 
Board discussion followed. 

 

Public Comment:  
Crosby Swartz 
 
Vice President Bahringer agreed with the Facility Manager’s request to make sure the 
Land Conservancy, if necessary, is responsible for downing any trees that are there. He 
doesn’t recommend the President sign this transfer agreement without noticing what the 
lots are, legal descriptions, etc. He suggests bringing this item to the August 1st meeting 
for completion. 
 
The Board reached consensus to address the item at the August 1st meeting. 

29



  S.R. 4.B. 

 

 

7. BOARD MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

A. Board Member and Committee Reports 
 

This item wasn’t discussed at the July 26, 2018 meeting. 
 

8. MANAGER REPORTS 
 

A. General Manager's Report 
 

This item wasn’t discussed at the July 26, 2018 meeting, but will be discussed at the 
August 1, 2018 Special Meeting. 

 

B. Finance Manager's Report 
 

This item wasn’t discussed at the July 26, 2018 meeting, but will be discussed at the 
August 1, 2018 Special Meeting. 

 

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) (Estimated time: 15 Minutes) 
 

This item wasn’t discussed at the July 26, 2018 meeting, but will be discussed at the 
August 1, 2018 Special Meeting. 

 
10. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
President Rice adjourned the meeting to closed session at 6:17 p.m. 
 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION Pursuant 

to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(4) One potential case. 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. 

Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Group: International Association of 

Fire Fighters (IAFF) 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. 

Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Employee Organization: Services Employee 

International Union 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.6 Agency Designated Representatives: General Manager, Jerry D. 
Gruber and Shelline Bennett, LCW; Unrepresented group, Management and 
Confidential Exempt Employees 

30



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 4.C. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: August 23, 2018  Subject:        CONSIDERATION TO APPOINT DONN  
        HOWELL TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE  
        COMMITTEE TO FILL THE VACANCY  
        CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF   
        MURIL CLIFT  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors consider appointing Donn Howell to the 
Infrastructure Committee to replace Muril Clift, per the recommendation of Director Pierson.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
At the March 22, 2018 meeting, the Board of Directors created two standing committees, the 
Infrastructure Committee and the Finance Committee, and appointed community members to 
serve on both. On July 25, 2018, staff was made aware that Muril Clift had resigned his 
position on the Infrastructure Committee. Since Director Pierson nominated Muril Clift at the 
March 22, 2018 meeting, he is entitled to nominate another community member to fill the 
vacancy on the Infrastructure Committee. Director Pierson has recommended that the Board 
appoint Donn Howell to the Infrastructure Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER___FARMER ___ WHARTON ___PIERSON______ 
 

31



32



33



34



35



36



RESOLUTION 26-2018 
AUGUST 23, 2018 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

APPROVING THE FINAL CCSD BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 
 
 

WHEREAS, the General Manager has submitted for consideration the Final Cambria 

Community Services District (CCSD) Fiscal Year (FY) 2018/2019 Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the draft Preliminary FY 2018/2019 CCSD Budget was introduced during a 

public hearing on June 21, 2018, and all persons were given an opportunity to be heard 

and their suggestions carefully considered; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on August 23, 2018, on the Final FY 2018/2019 CCSD 

Budget was duly scheduled, advertised, and held, and all persons were given an 

opportunity to be heard and their suggestions carefully considered. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors has reviewed the 

Final CCSD Budget FY 2018/2019 for the period from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, 

and hereby finds that the Budget is a sound plan for financing and expenditure control of 

required CCSD operations and services, and said Budget is hereby approved. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors is aware of the potential that 

events beyond control of the CCSD could substantially reduce CCSD revenues and/or 

increase expenditures. Therefore, the General Manager may temporarily suspend the 

expenditure of funds within the adopted Budget if in his judgment such temporary 

suspension is necessary to protect the CCSD’s financial position and the impact of such 

a temporary suspension on CCSD operations will not be substantially detrimental to 

CCSD services. The General Manager is directed to administer the business operations 

of the CCSD as called for in the Operating Budget for FY 2018/2019 and as modified by 

any such temporary expenditure suspension. The General Manager is further directed to 

report back to the CCSD Board of Directors, as necessary, with recommendations for 

revision of the Budget when, and if, Budget impacts are known, and specific CCSD 

program or service level adjustments can be formulated. 

  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the CCSD Board of Directors hereby directs the 

General Manager to levy and collect special assessments and other fees as duly 

approved by the Board and to administer and expend the tax proceeds in accordance 

with the enabling legislation.  
 
On the motion of Director __________________________, seconded by Director  

37



 
____________________________, and the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of August, 2018. 
 
 
 
             
       Amanda Rice, President 
       Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Monique Madrid     Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk      District Counsel 
 
 
 
             

 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



8/22/2018: Added Attachment to SR 5.A. 65



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.A. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
   
   
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: August 23, 2018        Subject: DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 
        OF APPROVAL OF INTER-FUND  
        LOAN AGREEMENT AND PROVIDING  
        DIRECTION REGARDING POLICY  
        FOR FUTURE INTER-FUND LOANS 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors discuss and consider approval of an Inter-Fund 
Loan Agreement for a loan from the General Fund to the Wastewater Fund in the amount of four 
hundred sixty-six thousand dollars ($466,000). It is also recommended that the Board discuss 
and provide direction regarding creating a policy to regulate future inter-fund loans. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    
Approval of the proposed Inter-Fund Loan Agreement will provide for a loan from the General Fund 
to the Wastewater Fund in the amount of four hundred sixty-six thousand dollars ($466,000). The 
proposed term of the inter-fund loan will be for a ten (10) year period at a compound interest rate 
of four percent (4%) per annum. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Based upon the audit for the 2015/16 Fiscal Year, the Wastewater Fund had a shortfall of 
$466,000. This was largely the result of unanticipated and necessary repairs at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, and to address deficiencies in the District’s wastewater infrastructure and 
system, which included emergency repairs that came up during that fiscal year.   
 
In order to cover the shortfall, staff is proposing an inter-fund loan from the General Fund to the 
Wastewater Fund. The loan will be for a proposed term of ten (10) years at a compound interest 
rate of four percent (4%) per annum. While inter-fund loans are a common practice among public 
agencies, it is appropriate to document such loans in the form of an agreement. The agreement 
should also provide for the term of the loan, a repayment schedule, and interest, which should 
be at least at the rate that the lending fund would otherwise be able to accrue through the 
District’s investment program for its reserve and funds balances. A draft Inter-Fund Loan 
Agreement for the proposed loan is attached for the Board’s consideration. 
 
In addition, staff has requested that the Board discuss and provide direction for the creation of 
a policy on future inter-fund loans. As noted, inter-fund loans are not uncommon and staff was 
able to locate several inter-fund loan policies from other agencies that might be of assistance to 
the Board in providing guidance for development of a policy for the CCSD. Accordingly, policies 

66



from the cities of San Jose, Redlands and the Mountain House Community Services District are 
attached.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Inter-Fund Loan Agreement 

 Sample Inter-Fund Loan Policies 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
BOARD ACTION: Date     Approved:    Denied:    
   
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER___FARMER ___ WHARTON ___PIERSON___ 

67



INTER-FUND LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
The Cambria Community Services District (“District”) hereby adopts this Inter-Fund Loan 
Agreement (“Agreement”) authorizing the transfer of funds by and between the Cambria 
Community Services District General Fund (“General Fund”) and the Cambria Community 
Services District Wastewater Fund (“Wastewater Fund”). 
 
RECITALS 
 

A. The Wastewater Fund requires an inter-fund loan in order to fund a shortfall from 

the 2015/16 Fiscal Year of $466,000 that was the result of unanticipated and 
necessary repairs at the Wastewater Treatment Plant, and to address deficiencies 
in the District’s wastewater infrastructure and system. 
 

B. The District desires and has the resources necessary to facilitate an inter-fund loan           
from the General Fund to the Wastewater Fund. 

 
C. This Agreement is executed for the purpose of evidencing the obligation of the 

Wastewater Fund to the General Fund for the repayment of monies loaned to the 
Wastewater Fund by the General Fund. 

 
AGREEMENT 
 

1. As the District agreed to transfer from the General Fund to the Wastewater Fund 
the amount of four hundred sixty-six thousand dollars ($466,000) as of June 1, 
2016. 

 
2. The term of this inter-fund loan shall be for a ten (10) year period and shall accrue 

interest at a simple rate of four percent (4%) per annum. 
 

3. The Wastewater Fund shall make annual payments based upon the Repayment 
Schedule contained in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. The Wastewater Fund shall repay the General Fund in full by June 30, 
2028. 

 
4. District staff is directed to make necessary appropriation adjustments to effectuate 

this inter-fund loan. 
 

5. District staff is directed to appropriately record this loan in the District’s ledger 
system and subsequent financial reports, as necessary. 

 
In Witness Whereof, this Agreement is executed by duly authorized officers of the 
Cambria Community Services District this 23rd day of August, 2018. 
 
 

[Signatures on following page.] 

68



 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Monique Madrid, District Clerk 
 
APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Timothy Carmel, District Counsel 
 
 
  

69



EXHIBIT A 
REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 
 
  DUE DATE PRINCIPAL  INTEREST   PAYMENT  BALANCE 
June 30, 2019 $   5,953.09 $ 55,920.00 $ 61,873.09 $ 460,046.91 
June 30, 2020 $ 43,471.21 $ 18,401.88 $ 61,873.09 $ 416,575.70 
June 30, 2021 $ 45,210.06 $ 16,663.03 $ 61,873.09 $ 371,365.63 
June 30, 2022 $ 47,018.46 $ 14,854.63 $ 61,873.09 $ 324,347.17 
June 30, 2023 $ 48,899.20 $ 12,973.89 $ 61,873.09 $ 275,447.97 
June 30, 2024 $ 50,855.17 $ 11,017.92 $ 61,873.09 $ 224,592.80 
June 30, 2025 $ 52,889.38 $   8,983.71 $ 61,873.09 $ 171,703.42 
June 30, 2026 $ 55,004.95 $   6,868.14 $ 61,873.09 $ 116,698.46 
June 30, 2027 $ 57,205.15 $   4,667.94 $ 61,873.09 $   59,493.31 
June 30, 2028 $ 59,493.31 $   2,379.73 $ 61,873.04 $             0.00 

 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



City of San Jose                 City Policy Manual

Interfund Loans  5.3.1

Effective Date: March 5, 2013
Page 1 of 5

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to establish administrative procedures for the implementation of Section
21 (Interfund Loans) of Council Policy No. 1-18 titled “Operating Budget and Capital Improvement
Program Policy”.

AUTHORITY

Council Policy No. 1-18 titled “Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Program Policy”, Section
21. Interfund Loans.

POLICY

To ensure that all interfund loans are appropriate, properly documented, and not established to the
detriment of the fund issuing the loan, Council Policy 1-18 established the following interfund loan
eligibility and documentation requirements:

a) Interfund Loan Eligibility Requirements – Interfund loans may not be used to solve ongoing
structural budget problems. Interfund loans must have an identified repayment source and
date; include an interest component that equals the investment earnings the fund would have
received had the loan not occurred; and be immediately due and payable if needed by the fund
that provided the loan.

b) Interfund Loan Documentation Requirements – Loan amount, term, and repayment source will
be identified any time a loan is recommended. Loans will be coordinated with the City
Attorney’s Office to ensure compliance with the Municipal Code and will be approved by the
City Council. Payments made on outstanding loans shall be reflected in the Proposed and
Adopted Budget and Annual Report, as applicable. A summary of all outstanding loans will
also be included in the annual Proposed and Adopted Operating Budget and the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The CAFR will also consistently include the
loan term, rate of interest, and the interest amount due in its calculation of the total liability
associated with the loan.

DEFINITIONS

Interfund loans are loans from one City fund to another City fund for a designated purpose.

PROCEDURES

The development of interfund loans requires coordination among several parties, including the 
departments overseeing the funds that would provide or receive the loans, the Budget Office, the 
Finance Department, and the City Attorney’s Office.  Interfund loans must be approved by the City 
Council.

Following are procedures for processing interfund loans:

Department managing the 
fund with funding need

Identify Funding Need

1. When determining a potential funding need, analyze projected 
revenues and expenditures for the particular fund, including the 

71



City of San Jose                 City Policy Manual

Interfund Loans  5.3.1

Effective Date: March 5, 2013
Page 2 of 5

development of a five-year source and use of funds statement, at 
minimum, or other longer multi-year analysis of revenues and 
expenditures, as appropriate.

2. Determine if the funding need under consideration can be paid from 
moneys within the existing fund by re-prioritizing expenditure items.

3. If the funding need cannot be paid by the fund, determine the 
amount and term of the potential loan.  There must, however, be an 
identified funding stream to repay the loan.

4. Determine if any of the funds managed by the requesting department
have available resources to repay an interfund loan.

Department managing the 
fund with funding need

Submit Request for Interfund Loan to Budget Office

1. Provide information on the funding need, the status, including fund 
balance, of the fund receiving the loan, potential funding options, the 
term of the loan, and the loan repayment plan.

2. Identify any timing constraints associated with the potential loan 
(e.g., loan funding needed by a certain time in order to secure grant 
funding or to address time sensitive capital need).

Budget Office

Budget Office and Finance
Department

Budget Office

City Attorney’s Office

Determine Appropriateness of Interfund Loan

1. Determine the nature of the funding need.  Interfund loans cannot be
used to address structural budget problems.

2. Determine if other funding mechanisms are available to address the 
funding need. 

3. Determine if the fund receiving the loan has a repayment plan that 
can be implemented; identify any funding risks associated with the 
repayment plan.

4. Determine if there are legal issues associated with the interfund loan.

Budget Office

Determine Fund to Provide Interfund Loan

1. If the requesting department identified a potential fund to provide an 
interfund loan, analyze the viability of that loan using the following 
criteria:

 availability of sufficient fund balance and/or uncommitted funds;

 reliability of revenue stream in the fund, including volatility of 
revenue in the fund;

 multi-year plans for the use of funding in the fund;

 potential risks if the loaned funds are needed by the lending fund
before the end of the loan term; and

 any fund restrictions that would not allow an interfund loan.

2. If the fund identified by the requesting department is not a good 
candidate for being the source of an interfund loan, identify other 

72



City of San Jose                 City Policy Manual

Interfund Loans  5.3.1

Effective Date: March 5, 2013
Page 3 of 5

Attorney’s Office

potential funds that could provide an interfund loan, using the same 
criteria listed above.  

3. Discuss the potential interfund loan with the department that 
manages the fund designated as the proposed source of the loan to 
determine if there are other factors to consider.

4. Determine if there are legal restrictions associated with the use of 
the identified funding source for the interfund loan.

Department managing the 
fund with funding need

Budget Office, City 
Attorney’s Office, 
Department managing the 
fund providing the loan

City Attorney’s Office

Prepare Loan Memorandum for City Council Consideration

1. Describe the need for the interfund loan, the fund providing the loan, 
and the terms of the interfund loan.

2. The recommendation language should provide details on the terms 
of the loan: fund receiving loan; amount of loan, fund providing loan, 
amount of interest to be paid on the loan (must be at least equal to 
the investment earnings the fund would have received had the loan 
not occurred); duration of the loan, and provision that that loan be 
immediately due and payable if needed by the fund that is the 
funding source for the loan.  The budget actions in both the fund 
providing the loan and the fund receiving the loan are also included 
in the recommendation.

3. Describe any potential alternatives to the interfund loan and the 
associated impacts.

4. Submit the memorandum to the Budget Office, the City Attorney’s 
Office, and the department that manages the fund that will be 
providing the loan for review; the Budget Director is a co-signer on all
memoranda with recommended budget actions.

5. Review memorandum and provide any necessary edits.

6. Prepare the resolution with the loan terms.

Department managing the 
fund that received the loan

Budget Office and 
Department managing the 
fund that provided the loan

Monitor the Interfund Loan and Budget Loan Repayment Consistent with
the Terms of the Loan

1. As part of the annual budget process, ensure that the loan 
repayment is budgeted consistent with the loan terms.

2. Verify that the loan repayment is budgeted consistent with the loan 
terms.

Finance Department

Budget Office

Report on the Status of the Interfund Loan

1. On an annual basis, report on the status of the interfund loan in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

2. On an annual basis, report on the status of the interfund loan in the 
Annual Operating Budget.

73



City of San Jose                 City Policy Manual

Interfund Loans  5.3.1

Effective Date: March 5, 2013
Page 4 of 5

Department managing the 
fund that received the loan

Budget Office, Finance 
Department, City 
Attorney’s Office, and 
department managing the 
fund that provided the loan

Department managing the 
fund that received the loan

Budget Office, City 
Attorney’s Office, 
Department managing the 
fund providing the loan

City Attorney’s Office

Modifying  Interfund Loan

1. Identify the need for a loan modification and an analysis of the 
potential loan modification to the Budget Office, Finance 
Department, the City Attorney’s Office, and the department 
managing the fund that provided the loan.  This analysis should 
include a description of the need for the loan modification, the impact
on the fund that received the loan, the impact on the fund that 
provided the loan, the revised loan terms, and the repayment plan.

2. Determine if the loan modification is appropriate.

3. If it is determined that a loan modification is needed, prepare the 
Council memorandum describing the loan modification, including the 
reason for the modification and the new loan terms.  Include any 
necessary budget actions.

4 Review memorandum and provide any necessary edits.

5. Prepare the resolution with the loan terms.

Approved:

/s/ Alex Gurza March 5, 2013
Deputy City Manager Date

/s/ Ed Shikada March 5, 2013
Assistant City Manager Date

74



City of San Jose                 City Policy Manual

Interfund Loans  5.3.1

Effective Date: March 5, 2013
Page 5 of 5

Sample Loan Recommendation Language:

Interfund loans require City Council approval and the following components are to be included in the loan
recommendation language:  fund receiving loan; amount of loan, fund providing loan, amount of interest 
to be paid on the loan (must be at least equal to the investment earnings the fund would have received 
had the loan not occurred); duration of the loan, and provision that that loan be immediately due and 
payable if needed by the fund that provided the loan

Sample Language:

Adopt a resolution approving the loan in the amount of $[_____] from the [Name of Lending Fund] (Fund 
[#___]) to the [Name of Receiving Fund] (Fund [#____]) for the purpose of [describe use of funds] for the 
[Name of Project] with the following loan terms:
 
1.   The [Receiving Fund] (Fund # [____]) shall pay interest at a rate equal to the investment earnings of 

the Lending Fund (Fund #).
 
2.   The loan shall be fully due and payable on [Repayment Date].
 
3.   The loan shall be repaid with [describe the source of funds for repayment, i.e. grant reimbursements] 

from the [describe the nature of the funds, i.e. Name of Grant].
 
4.    All [grant reimbursements or other identified funds] received by the City from [identified source of 

repayment] for the [insert the purpose and project] shall be budgeted to the repayment of the loan 
until it is fully repaid.

 
5.   In the event that a shortfall arises in the [Name of Receiving Fund] (Fund # [____]), another eligible 

source of revenue shall fully repay the loan. 
 
6.   The loan shall be immediately due and payable if required by [Name of Lending Fund] (Fund # 

[_____]) to fund any eligible project.
 
7.   A final balloon payment shall be paid to the [Name of Lending Fund] (Fund # [_____]) no later than 

[Repayment Date] if the loan has not been fully repaid from the [source of repayment] by Repayment 
Date.

 
 

75



EXHIBIT “A” 

City of Redlands 

POLICY & PROCEDURES 

Subject: Interfund Loan Policy Department:  Finance 
Policy No. F-003-2013 Effective Date:   
Ordinance/Resolution No.  7354 Approval Date: 

DEFINITION

Interfund loans are loans from one City fund to another City fund for a specific purpose 
with a requirement for repayment. 

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines regarding the establishment, 
management, and repayment of interfund loans. 

INTERFUND LOAN POLICY 

General

1.1 Interfund loans should be considered temporary or short-term borrowing of cash and may 
be made for the following reasons: 

 To offset timing differences in cash flow 

 To offset timing differences between expenditures and reimbursements, typically 
associated with grant funding 

 To provide for advance spending for a capital project prior to securing project financing. 

 For other needs as deemed appropriate by City Council.  

1.2 The term of the interfund loan may continue over a period of more than one year, but must 
be “temporary” in the sense that no permanent diversion of the lending fund results from 
the failure to repay by the borrowing fund.  Additionally, interfund loans should not hinder 
the accomplishment of any function or project for which the lending fund was established. 

1.3 Interfund loans should not be used to solve ongoing structural budget problems. 

Procedures

2.1 The establishment of Interfund loans requires coordination among several parties, 
including the department overseeing the funds that would provide or receive the loan, the 
Finance Department, and the City Attorney’s Office.  Interfund loans must be approved by 
the City Council. 

2.2 The following procedures should be followed in establishing an interfund loan: 

76



EXHIBIT “A” 

1) The department managing the borrowing fund should prepare a request of interfund 
loan.  The request shall include amount requested, loan period, and monthly/annual 
payment plan.  The department should analyze projected revenues and expenditures 
for the particular fund.  The interfund loan request and supporting documentation 
should be forwarded to the Finance Department.  

2) The Finance Department should provide information on the status of the funds 
providing and receiving the loan, potential funding options, and estimated loan and 
interest repayment calculation.  Interfund loans should include an interest component 
that equals the investment earnings the providing fund would have received had the 
loan not occurred.

3) Documents prepared in 1 and 2 above should be forwarded to the City Attorney’s 
Office to determine if there are legal restrictions associated with the use of the 
identified funding source for the interfund loan, and to prepare the resolution with the 
loan terms.

Repayment

3.1 Repayment of the loan is top priority of the borrowing fund once cash is available. 

3.2 As part of the annual budget process, the Finance Department should ensure that the loan 
repayment is budgeted consistent with the loan terms. 

3.3 If the borrowing fund continues to maintain negative cash balance for periods beyond the 
term of the loan, scheduled payments should be postponed until the fund has a positive 
cash balance.  Interest should continue to accrue and be added to the principal of the 
loan.

3.4 If the borrowing fund is an operating fund, it must maintain positive cash balance of at 
least 10% of its operating expense/expenditure budget to be able to repay the loan; 
excess cash balance (over the 10%) should be used to make scheduled payments and 
catch-up payments. 

Modification

4.1 Modification of loan term, interest rate, and/or repayment schedule of an interfund loan 
should be approved by unanimous vote of the City Council.   

77



POLICY & ACTION ITEM 9.1 

 
230 S. Sterling Drive, Suite 100, Mountain House, CA 95391 

Tel (209) 831-2300 • Fax (209) 831-5610 

 

MOUNTAIN HOUSE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
“Providing Quality Services to the Community” 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

AGENDA TITLE: Board of Directors to Consider Adoption of Interfund Loan Policy 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 10, 2014 

 

PREPARED BY:      Gabe Karam, Interim General Manager 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the attached Resolution approving an 

Interfund Loan Policy by majority vote.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

As part of the annual audit of the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2013, the District’s auditors, Richardson & Company, made observations concerning internal 

controls over financial transactions and recommendations for improvement.  Included in the 

auditor’s report was a recommendation to adopt an Interfund Loan Policy.   

 

Interfund loans are advances from one District fund to another District fund for a designated 

purpose.  The auditors noted that the District’s General Fund had made loans in the amount of 

$5.4 million to the Water, Wastewater and Stormwater Funds.  These utility funds have required 

subsidies since 2003.  The estimated balance of these interfund loans as of June 30, 2014 is $5.7 

million.  An additional subsidy to the Wastewater Fund in the amount of $100 thousand was 

included in the adopted budget for fiscal year 2014-2015.  The amount of advances has 

decreased in recent years and should continue to do so due to an increasing customer base.  

While the loans were anticipated by the District and disclosed in its annual financial statements 

and budgets, there was no actual loan agreement and there had been no formal decision as to 

whether or not interest should be charged on the loans.  The purpose of the proposed Interfund 

Loan Policy is to establish administrative procedures for recommending, approving and 

recording interfund loans.   

 

Interfund loans will be recommended by the Business Manager and General Manager and 

approved by the District Board by means of a Resolution.  The Resolution to approve an 

interfund loan will include the amount advanced, term, repayment source, and rate of interest to 

be charged.  In the case of the General Fund’s advances to the utility funds, the Resolution may 

give blanket approval for future advances until such time that those funds have the resources to 

repay the advances. 

The Board is not required to charge interest on interfund advances.  That decision will be based 

on the circumstances surrounding each interfund advance. 

78



POLICY & ACTION ITEM 9.1 

 
230 S. Sterling Drive, Suite 100, Mountain House, CA 95391 

Tel (209) 831-2300 • Fax (209) 831-5610 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Interfund Loan Policy will provide formal guidelines for the advancement and repayment of 

interfund advances.  The timing of payments will depend on the resources available in the 

advancing and borrowing funds. 

 

ACTION FOLLOWING BOARD APPROVAL: 

Staff will implement the approved Interfund Loan Policy as directed by the Board.  Staff will 

prepare an Interfund Loan Agreement formalizing the terms of repayment to the General Fund 

from the Water, Wastewater and Stormwater Funds and present it the Board at a future meeting 

for consideration. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A:   Resolution 2014-22 

Attachment B:  Proposed Interfund Loan Policy 

 

c: District Counsel 

 

79



 

 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
MOUNTAIN HOUSE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
NO.  2014-22 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE INTERFUND LOAN POLICY 

 
WHEREAS, Mountain House Community Services District (“MHCSD”) desires to 
maintain current and comprehensive Financial Management Policies; and 

 
WHEREAS, there is a need to formalize the policies regarding loans made between 
District funds;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the MHCSD 
adopt the Interfund Loan Policy attached hereto as Attachment “A” and incorporated as 
though fully set forth herein. Said Interfund Loan Policy shall become effective 
immediately. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of September, 2014, by the following vote of 
the Board of Directors of the Mountain House Community Services District, to wit: 
 
AYES:      
 
NOES:     
 
ABSENT 

______________________________ 
STEVEN GUTIERREZ, PRESIDENT 
Board of Directors of the Mountain 
House Community Services District, 
County of San Joaquin, State of 
California 
 

ATTEST:  NICOLE M. F. ADAMO 
Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors 
of the Mountain House Community 
Services District, County of San  
Joaquin, State of California 
 
By:  ___________________________ 

POLICY & ACTION ITEM 9.1 
ATTACHMENT A80



POLICY & ACTION ITEM 9.1 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

1 
 

MOUNTAIN HOUSE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY 

INTERFUND LOAN POLICY 

 

PURPOSE 

 

This policy documents requirements and responsibilities to be followed regarding borrowing 

between funds of the Mountain House Community Services District. 

 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all interfund loans are appropriate, properly 

documented, and not established to the detriment of the fund issuing the loan. 

 

POLICY 

 

Interfund loan recommendations and agreements must include the loan amount, an identified 

repayment source and the date or timing of repayment.   

 

The agreements may include an interest component that equals the investment earnings the fund 

would have received had the loan not occurred, with the following exceptions: 

 

 Amounts loaned from the Water, Wastewater and Stormwater funds to other District funds 

must include an interest component. 

 Amounts loaned to Developer funds must include an interest component. 

 

When it is determined that interest will be paid by the borrowing fund to the lending fund, the 

amount of interest to be charged will be calculated using the rate investment rate earned by the 

San Joaquin County Treasury. 

 

The Board of Directors must approve by resolution all interfund loans. 

 

Payments made on outstanding loans shall be reflected in the proposed and adopted operating 

budget and in the annual financial statements.  The annual financial statements will also include 

the loan amount, term, rate of interest, and amount of interest due on the total amount of the loan. 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Interfund loans are loans from one District fund to another District fund for a designated 

purpose.   

 

81



POLICY & ACTION ITEM 9.1 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

2 
 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY 

INTERFUND LOAN POLICY (continued) 

 

Interfund loans may be made for the following reasons: 

 To offset timing differences in cash flow 

 To provide financing for interim financing in conjunction with obtaining long-term financing 

 For short-term borrowing in place of external financing 

 To provide operating capital for utility funds while the customer base increases 

 For other needs as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors 

 

Interfund loan monies may only be used for the purpose identified in the authorizing resolution.  

Records of interfund loan transactions will be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles and will reflect the balances of loans in every fund affected by such 

transactions. 

 

 

 

 

82



   
 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.B.  

       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, Administrative Services Officer 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date:  August 23, 2018  Subject:  DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION  
        TO ADOPT POLICY B-02-18   
         

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the Board discuss and consider the attached policy, B-02-18, to identify the 
process by which a new policy is created. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
None. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
At the June 28, 2018 Regular Board Meeting, the CCSD Board directed the General Manager 
to bring forward a minimum of one policy each month for the Board to consider for adoption.   
 
Accordingly, this policy has been drafted to be considered by the Board. This policy will identify 
the process by which a new policy is created.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: CCSD Policy B-02-18  
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ RICE ___ BAHRINGER ___ FARMER___ WHARTON___PIERSON___ 

83



p:\admin\0300 district management\302 board meetings\302-03 agenda\2018\08 aug\august 23, 2018 regular 
meeting\sr 6 b attachment 01_b-02-2018 new policy creation (tc approved.docx 

 
 

 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

POLICY B-02-2018 
 
NEW POLICY CREATION 
 
Consideration by the Board of Directors to adopt a new policy or to amend an existing policy may 
be initiated by any Director or the General Manager by submitting a written draft of the proposed 
new or amended policy to the Board President, Vice-President and the General Manager. The 
proposed new or amended policy may be submitted in person or by any communication method 
approved by the District, and shall be accompanied by a request that the item be included for 
consideration on the agenda of the next appropriate regular meeting of the Board of Directors.  
 
Adoption of a new policy or amendment of an existing policy shall be accomplished at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors in accordance with the State statutes regarding the constitution 
of a majority vote. 
 
Copies of proposed new or amended policy(ies) shall be included in the agenda-information 
packet for any meeting at which they are scheduled for consideration (listed on the agenda). A 
copy shall be made available to each Director for review at least 72 hours prior to any meeting at 
which the policy(ies) are to be considered. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

84



 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.A. 
 
FROM:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Meeting Date: August 23, 2018      Subject: MANAGER’S REPORT  
 

GENERAL MANAGER: 
 
Attached please find the various Department Managers and Supervisors staff reports for the Board’s 
review. The Departments are Administration, Human Resources, Engineering, Fire, Facility and 
Resources, Water, Wastewater and we recently added the Sustainable Water Facility. Over the past 
several years, these department reports have evolved to show both the community and the Board the 
broad range of responsibility and the scope of services that the CCSD provides to the community, visitors, 
the CCSD Board of Directors and to each other.  
 
I would like to thank everyone within the Administration Department, including Human Resources and 
Engineering, for your hard word and superb customer service. I would also like to thank Chief 
Hollingsworth and the entire staff of the Cambria Community Services Fire Department for keeping our 
community safe and responding to medical emergencies twenty-four hours a day. I know it was not easy 
to lose an additional team member from each shift, however you continue to provide the highest level of 
services while maintaining professionalism and dedication to service. I would like to thank Carlos and the 
Facilities and Resources staff for the incredible job they do maintaining the Fiscalini Ranch and all the 
CCSD facilities. I would like to thank Jason and the Water Department staff for providing the community 
of Cambria with a safe, reliable source of water for human consumption, sanitation and for fire protection. 
I would like to thank John and the Wastewater Department staff for operating and maintaining the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Collection System that represents an environment of constant 
improvements and operational efficiency. I would like to thank James and all the staff who support him 
in the maintenance and operations of the Sustainable Water Facility and the Impoundment Basin.  
 
Please take a few minutes of your time while visiting the CCSD office or while hiking the Ranch or when 
you meet CCSD staff to thank them for their hard work and dedication to Cambria.  
 
I have included the photographs from last month as part of your agenda packet showing some of the 
Capital Improvements that have been made between 2015-2018. I have also included these slides as 
part of a slide show that will start approximately fifteen minutes before the Board Meeting. I have also 
included additional photos and slides for work that was recently completed at the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant to replace the digestor hand rails, the rebuilding of the Bluff Trail by the Facilities and Resources 
Department and the Water Department’s new portable Vactor trailer that will be used for cleaning out and 
maintaining water valve canisters and in repairing both small and large water leaks.  
 
I would like to thank Alleyne LaBossiere for working closely with me while finalizing the Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 Budget. Alleyne came in on a very short notice and has done a great job working on numerous 
financial related items for the CCSD.  
 
ADMINISTRATION:  
During the end of July and throughout the month of August, the Administrative Services Officer/District 
Clerk and Deputy District Clerk worked on the following items:  
 
Human Resources: 

• Prepared for multiple labor negotiation meetings 

• Attended multiple labor negotiation meetings with both represented groups, closed session, and 
lead negotiator. 

85



 
 

 

• Met with several employees for various Human Resources matters 

Recruitment: 

• Finalized the Wastewater Operator-In-Training (OIT) and Grade II recruitment and the applicant 

will start work on 9/4/2018 

• Review of documents prepared in preparation of the advertisements 

• Finalized the Finance Specialist – Payroll & Benefits recruitment and Nancy Gravender will start 

work on 9/4/2018 

• Started the Finance Manager recruitment 

• Review of documents prepared for recruitment and advertisements  

• Participated in several interview panels for vacant positions 

Trainings: 

• Emailed Directors and Managers regarding completing the Ethics AB 1234 webinars 

• Attended an Equal Pay webinar  

• Congratulations to Jason Vormbaum on receiving his Grade 3 

 

Contract Liaison: 

• Finalized the Nerelli Welding public works contract 
 
Board Meetings: 

• Attended multiple agenda preparation meetings 

• Coordinated sending out staff report reminders to Managers  

• Finalized the July 2018 Resolutions 

• Prepared for and published the August Special and Regular Board meeting agenda packets 

• Posted the June approved Special and Regular meeting minutes 

• Follow-up on Board action and document preparation and distribution 
 

The following information represents the 2018 year-to-date meetings held, which are subject to the Brown 

Act:  

• 8 Regular Board meeting agenda packets 

• 13 Special Board meeting agenda packets 

• 5 Regular Finance Committee meeting agenda packets 

• 1 Special Finance Committee meeting agenda packet 

• 5 Regular Infrastructure Committee meeting agenda packets 

• 2 Special Infrastructure Committee meeting agenda packets 

• 8 Regular PROS Commission meeting agenda packets 

The total number equals 42.   

 
Finance Committee: 

• Prepared for and published the August regular meeting agenda packet 

• Met with General Manager and Interim Finance Manager for budget review 

• Multiple meetings to review various items related to the meeting 

• Published the revised 2018 Finance Committee meeting schedule 

• Met with Bank regarding operational matters 

Infrastructure Committee: 

• Prepared for and published the August regular meeting agenda packet 

• Published the 2018 Infrastructure Committee meeting schedule 

86



 
 

 

PROS Commission: 

• Haley handles the creation, distribution and posting of the PROS Commission meeting agendas 
and minutes 

• Finalized the PROS Commissioner application, posted the application on the webpage and sent 
the ad to the Tribune  

• Posted the approved July regular meeting minutes 

• Prepared for and published the August regular meeting agenda packet 

• Prepared the September regular meeting agenda packet 

 
Meetings: 

• Prepared for and conducted bi-weekly Administrative Office staff meetings 

• Attended the PROS Committee meeting 

• Emailed Jerry and Board of Directors regarding various meeting reminders in Cambria 

• Attend weekly operational phone calls 

• Attend various meetings with multiple staff members regarding a wide variety of operational 
matters 

 
Miscellaneous: 

• Worked on public record requests and responses, review documents, redact as appropriate and 
provide responses to the requestor 

• Participated in multiple operational meetings with various managers and administrative staff 

• Processed purchase orders for multiple vendors 

• Worked on the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence website requirements 

• The Administrative Office is vacating the finance portion of the office, which is an annual expense 
of approximately $12,000. In order for this to take place some remodeling and office equipment 
purchases were required. The cost of these improvements offsets the first year’s savings but will 
equate to a long-term savings of approximately $12,000 annually. That portion of office space is 
expected to be relinquished in October 2018 when the lease is up for renewal.   

• Arrange for repairs to Administrative Office resulting from water damage 

• Handled multiple insurance claims 

• Scheduled a site visit by insurance provider 

Engineering Department: 

• Met with the District Engineer and General Manager 

• Met Management Analyst for multiple operational matters 

Facilities & Resources Department: 

• Met with the Facilities & Resources Manager regarding work that needs to be done in the 

Administrative Office 

Fire Department: 

• Met with the Fire Chief  

 

Finance Department: 

• Tyler Incode:  Will be postponed until the Finance Manager position is filled. 

• Met with the Interim Finance Manager on multiple occasions 

• Met with Interim Finance Manager to discuss and assist with multiple Finance Department matters 

• Review and improve accounts payable process and provide support needed to staff 

• Led and monitored the Proposition 218 process, ensured CIS updates 

• Reviewed number of Notices returned by mail.  Approximately 20 Notices were returned through 
August 15, representing just under ½ percent address error rate. 

• Held various meetings with staff regarding the Proposition 218 process 

87



 
 

 

• I would like to extend my appreciation to the entire Administration Staff, especially Stephanie Salvi 
and Melissa Bland, as well as all other staff, Haley Dodson, Chris Cox and Nancy Gravender, 
Jason Buhl and all of the Water Department operators who worked long hours both before their 
regular work day began, after their regular work day ended and their Friday off and on the 
weekends, setting aside other work projects and tasks in order to meet the deadline for the 
Proposition 218 process.  The CCSD is extremely fortunate to have such dedicated staff 
members.   

Wastewater Department: 

• Met with Wastewater Department Supervisor 

Water Department: 

• Met with Water Department Supervisor 

FACILITIES AND RESOURCES: 
1. Fiscalini Ranch: 

a. East Ranch: 

i. Staff has remowed the entire east part of Ranch-Rodeo Grounds. Area was 

mowed in order to reduce the spread of bull and Italian thistles as well as fire 

protection.  

ii. Large willow tree fell across pedestrian bridge, blocking access to Ranch. Willow 

was cut, chipped and material hauled away. Access is now open across bridge.  

b. Dog Park: 

i. Inside of park was mowed. Wood chips were dropped inside dog park from 

previous jobs and spread out by CCSD Staff.  

2. Trail Work:  

a. Santa Rosa Creek Trail: CCSD Staff mowed both sides of trail. Poison oak and 

branches were encroaching. Both were mowed back.  

3. Bluff Trail Work: 

a. Work on resurfacing Bluff Trail began on August 6th. A month before work began signs 

were posted on entrances alerting users of the upcoming work.  

b. All equipment was mobilized to job site on Monday August 13th. Tractors, trailers, roller, 

mini skid steer, water tanks and dump truck.  

c. During work parts of Bluff Trail were closed. Appropriate signs were placed and FFRP 

volunteers assisted every day with directing traffic away from work site.  

d. 130 tons of base were laid down and spread across trail. Trail was last resurfaced about 

15 years ago. During that time, heavy use and weather have caused pot holes and 

uneven areas. 

e. Work was completed in 3½ days.  

f. Come out and enjoy the Ranch! 

4. California Conservation Corps:  

a. From August 8th – August 10 a crew of C’s worked on the forest.  

b. Crew was hired by FFRP to do work around monarch grove. This area has a lot of 

downed material, but because of the sensitive habitat, all work was done by hand. 

Downed material was hand carried to trail and chipped.  

c. CCSD provided chipper for the work.  

d. During work, trail was closed. Chips were left on site and will be utilized by FFRP to 

spread on trails.  

5. Vets Hall Repairs: 

a. A new door and trim have now been installed.  

b. New railing by BBQ area was removed and replaced.  

6. Skate Park: 

88



 
 

 

a. Repairs were made to large ramp. New sheets of skate light material were installed. 

New framing and siding were also installed on the side of ramp.  

ENGINEER: 

Key engineering department activities since the July 26, 2018 Board meeting report (prior staff 
report prepared on July 19, 2018) to the date of this report’s preparation, which was August 15, 
2018), have included:   
 

• Sustainable Water Facility (SWF):  

o The Advanced Water Treatment Plant (AWTP) has remained offline. 
o The July 2018 monthly and Second Quarterly Title 22 self-monitoring reports 

have been prepared and will be timely submitted on August 15, 2018. 
o The impoundment basin closure activities are continuing.  As of August 11, 2018, 

approximately 1,542,735 gallons have been pumped from the impoundment 
basin.  The impoundment basin freeboard is currently at 102.75 inches.  A new 
staff gauge has been installed to measure remaining pond volume.  The most 
current reading shows 54 inches of water remaining.  

o Chief Plant Operator Jim Green continues to work on preparations to allow 
restarting the facility as may be needed later on this fall.  Staff continue to have 
regular meetings to review progress. Preparation in July included: 

▪ Cleaning and calibrating analyzation equipment 
▪ Cleaning and calibrating analytical equipment for MF and RO filtration 

systems 
▪ Draining and disinfecting break tank and influent tank 
▪ Retrofitting chemical storage tanks 
▪ Preventative maintenance on compressors 

o Staff continues to coordinate with County Planning staff on the SWF’s Regular 
Coastal Development Permitting process. Currently, the SWF can only operate 
following a Stage 3 water shortage emergency declaration. 

 

• Influent Screen Installation at Wastewater Treatment Plant 
o The signed contract, insurance document, bonds were received from Brough 

Construction and a Notice to Proceed was issued on August 15, 2018. Day one 
of the contract is August 16, 2018, and there are 120 days allowed for 
completion. This results in a projected completion date of December 14, 2018. 
 

• Miscellaneous:   

o Permit Counter. For the 2018 Calendar Year: 2 Transfer of Positions, 11 
Assignments, 10 Voluntary Lot Mergers, 2 New/Re-Construction Applications, 
and 42 Remodel/Change-of-Use Applications were received for processing. We 
have also processed 3 applications to extend ITS letters. 

o SWRCB licensing of existing water rights remains in progress. 
o Staff continued to update background materials and respond to questions on the 

planned capital improvement projects for water, wastewater, and the SWF.  This 
included attending the August 7, 2018 standing Infrastructure Committee 
meeting. 

o Melissa Bland assisted the Administration Department with preparation of the 
Proposition 218 mailing list.   

 

89



 
 

 

• Well Levels 
o Current well levels are average for this time of year.   

 
WASTEWATER: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Operations  
• The contract for the replacement of the corroded hand rails on the digester has been executed 

with work scheduled to be completed during August. 

• The influent screen installation contract was awarded to Brough Construction.  A Notice to 

Proceed (NTP) will be issued once adequate insurance and bond documentation has been 

received from the contractor and found to be acceptable.  Work is to be completed within 120 

calendar days from issuance of the NTP.  

• Toni Artho has been updating the “KeepTraK” maintenance and work order program to include 

the collection system. He has also been improving the information in the system to better 

represent our fixed assets in the field.   Completing this information will provide a better 

inventory on our existing equipment.   

• The July 18th kick off meeting with PG&E went very well. Much information was gathered and 

will need to be reviewed. We look forward to reducing the power consumption here at the 

WWTP and improving operational efficiency.  

• Two roll-up doors in the shop at the WWTP had to be replaced. Hamon Overhead Doors did 

the install and estimated that the old doors were over 20 years old. 

Collection Systems & Lift Stations 
 

• The upgrades at lift station 9 are now paying off in terms of fewer failures and emergency 

callouts. We continue to improve upon this station’s reliability as we identify specific needs.  

Most recently, we identified the need to replace its main electrical meter panel.    

• New check valves have been ordered for lift station 9 and should be installed in August. 

Laboratory:  
 

• Abalone Coast continued to provide the services of a certified laboratory analyst for those 

analyses that are reported to the state. Currently, Abalone’s Amanda Smith is calibrating the 

online pH meter monthly.  

Administrative:  

• Jason Vormbaum is now a Grade III wastewater operator. Congratulations, Jason! 

• The recruitment for a new wastewater operator should be completed in August with a new hire 
starting in September.  

 
WATER: 

1. The SWF remains offline. Water operator Larry Moore continues to assist SWF CPO James 

Green. Duties include maintenance of filter membranes, sampling, impoundment basin liner 

integrity testing, and other plant maintenance. On weekends, the on-call water operators 

document all observations made at the impoundment basin, including available freeboard, 

wildlife present, liner integrity and weather. 

 
2. Well SR4 went back online July 20th. Since then, SR4 is operated five days a week. New pH 

and temperature monitoring equipment are functioning properly. In July, we entered into a 

service agreement with Hach Company which provides quarterly, biannual and annual 

analyzer calibrations at all well sites. Also included is maintenance of all Hach equipment at 

all well sites. The first visit from a Hach technician should occur in late August or early 

90



 
 

 

September. This new agreement with Hach comes with a substantial cost savings, both 

through vendor fees and saved staff time. 

 
3. In July, the Water Department took possession of a new Compressor/Jack-hammer. This 

new piece of equipment replaces the former compressor that the District purchased in the 

early 1990s. This piece of equipment is used for breaking asphalt and concrete necessary 

for repairing water leaks and installing or upgrading service connections. It is also used for 

horizontal boring when water mains are located on the opposite side of the road from the 

water meter. This helps keep service lateral trenches smaller and minimizes digging-up of 

SLO County roads. 

 
4. In July, there were 8 water leaks in the distribution system. One of the leaks was on the 

service line at the Ocean Point Ranch on Moonstone Beach Drive. This line has leaked 

again since repairing it in July. It is a very shallow line and will probably be prone to leaking 

again. We are scheduled to replace the entire service line in August. 

 
5. SLO County continued their road resurfacing project on Main St in July. The Water 

Department provided non-potable water for the slurry operation. 

 
6. San Simeon Aquifer: On July 7th, water stopped flowing past Palmer Flats (located at the 

second bridge as you head east on San Simeon Creek Road). Palmer Flats is the main 

filling point for the San Simeon Creek aquifer. Once water stops flowing at this location, well 

levels drop steeply. To protect our primary water source in San Simeon, the Water 

Department has ramped up production at our two Santa Rosa well sites (SR3 and SR4). 

This practice lessens the strain on the San Simeon Aquifer. 

 
7. Water Production & Well Levels for July 2018 are attached. 

 

8. The following table summarizes key activities that Water Department staff responded to 

during the month of July:  

Activity # 
Completed 

Read or re-read of existing water 
meters 

350 

Customer assists for high water 
usage on customer side of meter 

20 

Locking/Unlocking Water Meters 8 

Replaced Meter Stops 2 

Repairs of distribution system leaks 8 

After-Hours System Alarm 
Responses 

5 

Conservation Retrofit Inspections 16 

USA Locations 20 

 
 
Attachments:  

1. Production and Well Graphs 
2. PowerPoint Presentation 
3. Public Records Requests and Responses 
4. Community Announcement for September Chipping Event  

91



0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

35.00

40.00

45.00

50.00

55.00

60.00

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 A
B

O
V

E
 S

E
A

 L
E

V
E

L

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELL LEVELS
March 15th, 2018 - Current

23R SR4 SR3 SR1 WBE u Indicates CCSD Production wells

92



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

1
5

A
P

R
L

1
5

M
A

Y

1
5

J
U

N
E

1
5

J
U

L
Y

1
5

A
U

G
.

1
5

S
E

P
T

1
5

O
C

T
.

1
5

N
O

V
.

1
5

D
E

C
.

1
5

J
A

N
.

1
5

F
E

B
.

1
5

M
A

R
.

1
5

E
le

v
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
v
e
 S

e
a
 L

e
v
e
l 

(F
e
e
t)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
1988 - Current

1988  (566 af) 1989  (622 af) 1990  (457 af) 1991  (405 af) 1992  (542 af) 1993  (691 af)

1994  (538 af) 1995  (676 af) 1996  (718 af) 1997  (679 af) 1998  (707 af) 1999  (775 af)

2000  (799 af) 2001  (745 af) 2002 (728 af) 2003 (709 af) 2004 (612 af) 2005 (652 af)

2006 (613 af) 2007 (618 af) 2008 (707 af) 2009 (699 af) 2010 (672 af) 2011 (682 af)

2012 (724 af) 2013 (733 af) 2014 (466 af) 2015 (467 af) 2016 (494 af) 2017 (575 af)

2018

93



0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

20.00

22.00

24.00

26.00

28.00

A
P

R

M
A

Y

J
U

N

J
U

L

A
U

G

S
E

P

O
C

T

N
O

V

D
E

C

J
A

N

F
E

B

M
A

R

E
le

v
a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
v
e
 S

e
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
(F

e
e
t)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels
Mid-March 2018/2019 levels to date and 

1988 to Current Min, Max, & Average
Maximum Levels Minimum Levels Average Levels 2018

94



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

26

1
5

A
p
r

1
5

M
a

y

1
5

J
u

n
e

1
5

J
u

ly

1
5

A
u
g

1
5

S
e
p

t

1
5

O
c
t

1
5

N
o

v

1
5

D
e

c

1
5

J
a

n

1
5

F
e
b

1
5

M
a

r

1
5

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

v
e

 S
e

a
 L

e
v
e

l 
(F

e
e

t)

Month

San Simeon Creek Well Levels

Last 7 years
March, 2011  - Current

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

95



-5.00

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

1988 to Current Statistical San Simeon Well Level Summary by Month
showing Minimums, Maximums, 25 % Percentile, 75% Percentile

Average Level is the line between the Purple (hatched) and Green (solid) bars

25th Percentile 75th Percentile 2018 reads

96



8/1/18 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 8/1/18

Reference

Distance Point Depth of

Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea

Code Water Level Level Level             Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 32.52 83.42 50.90

SR4 29.83 82.00 52.17

SR3 20.40 54.30 33.90

SR1 18.20 46.40 28.20

RP#1 46.25

RP#2 33.11 Not Read

21R3 9.65 12.88 3.23 41268

WBE 13.21 16.87 3.66

WBW 13.65 17.02 3.37

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 31.05 FEET

      CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = 52.17 FEET

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 7.88 11.36 3.48

MW4 12.21 15.95 3.74

MW1 17.44 42.11 24.67

MW2 16.92 38.10 21.18

MW3 22.47 49.56 27.09

9M1 31.41 65.63 34.22

9P2 11.77 19.11 7.34

9P7 12.21 20.69 8.48

9L1 15.55 27.33 11.78

RIW 14.95 25.41 10.46

SS4 16.35 25.92 9.57 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = + 2.23

MIW 16.05 29.89 13.84

SS3 18.97 33.73 14.76

SS2 18.00 33.16 15.16

SS1 17.54 32.37 14.83

11B1 29.15 105.43 76.28

11C1 23.05 98.20 75.15

PFNW 19.75 93.22 73.47

10A1 28.80 78.18 49.38

10G2 21.27 62.95 41.68

10G1 19.57 59.55 39.98

10F2 27.95 66.92 38.97

10M2 26.15 55.21 29.06

9J3 19.45 43.45 24.00

lagoon 20.30 mitigation errosion none 

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1,SS2 & SS3  = 14.92 FEET

revised 6/6/16

8/1/18

2/17/2015

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

Reference point on 16d1,miw1,miw2,miw3,9p7,riw,miw1,ss1,ss2 and ss3 updated

97



8/13/18 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 8/13/18

Reference

Distance Point Depth of

Ref. Point Distance Water

Well to Above Sea to Sea

Code Water Level Level Level             Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 34.79 83.42 48.63

SR4 31.07 82.00 50.93

SR3 20.21 54.30 34.09

SR1 18.18 46.40 28.22

RP#1 46.25

RP#2 33.11 Not Read

21R3 9.24 12.88 3.64 41344

WBE 12.87 16.87 4.00

WBW 17.02 Not Read

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SANTA ROSA WELLS SR1 & SR3  = 31.16 FEET

      CCSD SANTA ROSA WELL SR4 = 50.93 FEET

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 7.80 11.36 3.56

MW4 12.19 15.95 3.76

MW1 42.11 Not Read

MW2 38.10 Not Read

MW3 49.56 Not Read

9M1 65.63 Not Read

9P2 12.10 19.11 7.01

9P7 20.69 Not Read

9L1 16.19 27.33 11.14

RIW 25.41 Not Read

SS4 16.64 25.92 9.28 SS4 to 9P2 Gradient = + 2.27

MIW 29.89 Not Read

SS3 19.90 33.73 13.83

SS2 18.98 33.16 14.18

SS1 18.76 32.37 13.61

11B1 105.43 Not Read

11C1 24.90 98.20 73.30

PFNW 93.22 Not Read

10A1 78.18 Not Read

10G2 62.95 Not Read

10G1 59.55 Not Read

10F2 66.92 Not Read

10M2 27.98 55.21 27.23

9J3 43.45 Not Read

lagoon 20.01 mitigation errosion none 

             AVERAGE LEVEL OF CCSD SAN SIMEON WELLS SS1,SS2 & SS3  = 13.87 FEET

revised 6/6/16

8/13/18

2/17/2015

                  Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells, as measured on

Reference point on 16d1,miw1,miw2,miw3,9p7,riw,miw1,ss1,ss2 and ss3 updated

98



DAY OF 
MONTH

SS #1 SS #2 SS #3 SR4 SR1 SR3
ALL WELLS 
TOTAL 

(galx1000)

Daily 
Pumpage 
(Acre‐Feet)

Month‐to‐Date 
(Acre‐Feet)

AWTP Santa Rosa
SR3 

(galx1,000)
SR4 (gal)

1 177.00 255.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 128.00 561.00 1.72 2 9.00 1602130.00
2 199.00 247.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27.00 473.00 1.45 3 3.00 1602130.00
3 222.00 259.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 118.00 599.00 1.84 5 3.00 1602130.00
4 184.00 210.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 196.00 590.00 1.81 7 8.00 1602130.00
5 179.00 202.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 204.00 585.00 1.80 9 9.00 1602130.00
6 220.00 249.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 186.00 655.00 2.01 11 6.00 1602130.00
7 221.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 146.00 617.00 1.89 13 6.00 1602130.00
8 197.00 221.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 238.00 656.00 2.01 15 8.00 1602130.00
9 210.00 235.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 187.00 632.00 1.94 16 4.00 1602130.00
10 161.00 192.00 0.00 2.00 1.00 185.00 541.00 1.66 18 6.00 1602130.00
11 152.00 169.00 0.00 0.00 5.00 180.00 506.00 1.55 20 8.00 1602130.00
12 103.00 119.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 225.00 447.00 1.37 21 6.00 1602130.00
13 174.00 199.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 233.00 606.00 1.86 23 9.00 1602130.00
14 225.00 257.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113.00 595.00 1.83 25 5.00 1602130.00
15 273.00 310.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 583.00 1.79 27 0.00 1602130.00
16 175.00 196.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112.00 483.00 1.48 28 6.00 1602130.00
17 156.00 196.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 305.00 657.00 2.02 30 12.00 1602130.00
18 76.00 89.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 411.00 576.00 1.77 32 11.00 1602130.00
19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 524.00 524.00 1.61 33 17.00 1602130.00
20 144.00 153.00 0.00 94.00 1.00 146.00 538.00 1.65 35 9.00 1606522.00
21 123.00 178.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 339.00 670.00 2.06 37 12.00 1606522.00
22 245.00 269.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 614.00 1.88 39 3.00 1606522.00
23 217.00 208.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00 465.00 1.43 40 0.00 1606522.00
24 162.00 238.00 0.00 24.00 0.00 222.00 646.00 1.98 42 11.00 1606522.00
25 91.00 95.00 0.00 37.00 0.00 379.00 602.00 1.85 44 1.00 1606522.00
26 61.00 76.00 0.00 120.00 0.00 290.00 547.00 1.68 46 15.00 1606522.00
27 102.00 118.00 0.00 98.00 0.00 128.00 446.00 1.37 47 6.00 1606522.00
28 112.00 126.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 481.00 719.00 2.21 50 14.00 1606522.00
29 125.00 144.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 266.00 535.00 1.64 51 11.00 1606522.00
30 113.00 128.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 450.00 691.00 2.12 53 15.00 1606522.00
31 136.00 148.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 193.00 477.00 1.46 55 6.00 1606522.00

TOTALS 4935.00 5736.00 0.00 405.00 8.00 6752.00 17836.00 54.74 (galx1000) 0.00 0.00 (galx1000) 230.00 1610.91
Daily AVG 159.19 185.03 0.00 13.06 0.26 217.81 575.35 1.77 (ACRE‐FEET) 0.00 0.00 (ACRE‐FEET) 0.71 4.94

100% 100% 100%
Corrected 4935.00 5736.00 0.00 405.00 8.00 6752.00 17836.00 54.74 (ACRE‐FEET)

DATE METER
7/1/2018 55.00

7/31/2018 58.00

32.75 ‐0.01 32.74 3.00
21.99 21.99 0.01
54.74 54.73
0.00

SS & SR TOTAL 0.00

CORRECTIONS Mitigation

AWTP Total

Santa Rosa Total 0.00

BACKWASH TOTAL

San Simeon Total 0.00 Total Recirc (ccf)
GROSS PRODUCTION (AF)

Total Recirc (AF)

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT JULY PRODUCTION
Mitigation Both Creeks 

(galx1000)
WELLS (galx1000)

Meter Correction Factors from Calibration done

ANALYZER METER

WELLFIELD 
CORRECTION

NET 
PRODUCTION 

(AF)

99



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

S.S. 14.87 15.89 25.03 32.22 38.72 39.21 32.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 198.68

S.R. 29.65 23.27 12.99 6.85 5.02 7.89 21.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107.65

SS & SR TOTAL 44.51 39.15 38.02 39.06 43.74 47.11 54.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 306.33

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 31.92 18.84 40.96 45.42 46.33 34.69 24.65 18.90 25.89 28.39 19.19 23.18 358.36

S.R. 6.88 14.33 5.95 9.76 17.86 28.23 32.52 32.01 16.80 12.13 19.96 20.92 217.36

SS & SR TOTAL 38.80 33.18 46.91 55.18 64.19 62.92 57.17 50.90 42.69 40.53 39.15 44.11 575.72

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

S.S. 16.43 9.51 19.84 21.88 24.30 30.90 30.40 29.68 29.02 8.07 5.82 21.55 247.39

S.R. 17.87 27.34 16.71 15.60 15.74 13.87 20.45 18.12 16.65 34.27 31.97 18.30 246.89

SS & SR TOTAL 34.30 36.86 36.55 37.47 40.04 44.76 50.85 47.80 45.67 42.34 37.79 39.85 494.28

AWTP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.33 7.04 5.70 23.07

S.S. 19.95 16.65 17.16 17.79 16.18 14.14 15.14 17.39 20.36 26.17 23.74 21.23 225.89

S.R. 14.77 14.90 20.53 20.68 20.99 26.51 29.51 27.78 21.94 16.05 13.57 13.90 241.13

SS & SR TOTAL 34.72 31.55 37.69 38.47 37.17 40.65 44.65 45.17 42.30 42.22 37.31 35.13 467.02

AWTP 5.55 14.34 12.49 7.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.68 8.07 6.29 10.89 68.92

S.S. 22.93 16.97 24.90 25.03 19.39 14.40 11.94 0.00 0.76 24.32 13.74 23.81 198.17

S.R. 34.69 19.85 10.00 10.44 18.88 24.19 30.89 43.09 36.26 12.06 18.63 9.62 268.59

SS & SR TOTAL 57.62 36.82 34.90 35.47 38.27 38.59 42.82 43.09 37.01 36.37 32.36 33.44 466.76

S.S. 50.55 47.40 54.72 55.27 63.18 46.01 60.82 72.32 57.73 29.84 26.72 28.61 593.16

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 4.27 5.28 27.57 18.12 3.50 7.62 22.56 25.38 25.61 139.91

SS & SR TOTAL 50.55 47.40 54.72 59.54 68.45 73.58 78.94 75.82 65.35 52.40 52.11 54.22 733.07

S.S. 50.12 48.09 52.60 50.52 60.06 56.53 48.17 41.12 36.72 42.22 48.70 50.88 585.73

S.R. 3.54 0.79 0.00 0.66 1.44 11.14 27.95 33.22 29.98 21.43 8.86 0.00 139.01

SS & SR TOTAL 53.66 48.88 52.60 51.18 61.50 67.67 76.12 74.34 66.70 63.65 57.56 50.88 724.74

S.S. 48.05 43.36 45.17 52.11 53.94 49.27 60.52 55.52 45.40 45.67 46.28 51.87 597.16

S.R. 0.00 0.70 0.00 0.76 6.65 11.03 12.97 14.82 19.45 14.15 5.19 0.00 85.72

SS & SR TOTAL 48.05 44.06 45.17 52.87 60.59 60.30 73.49 70.34 64.85 59.82 51.47 51.87 682.88

S.S. 45.44 40.48 47.48 48.39 56.26 55.29 50.73 44.58 35.05 37.61 36.14 36.45 533.90

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.77 0.62 0.68 8.74 21.96 27.30 32.52 21.71 14.48 9.73 138.51

SS & SR TOTAL 45.44 40.48 48.25 49.01 56.94 64.03 72.69 71.88 67.57 59.32 50.62 46.18 672.41

S.S. 28.17 37.57 50.95 58.52 48.56 37.47 48.80 40.69 31.99 44.62 53.05 46.55 526.94

S.R. 24.83 3.81 0.00 0.00 13.53 26.06 25.21 34.10 32.64 11.02 0.00 1.34 172.54

SS & SR TOTAL 53.00 41.38 50.95 58.52 62.09 63.53 74.01 74.79 64.63 55.64 53.05 47.89 699.48

S.S. 43.35 45.35 51.55 52.59 40.45 33.03 40.15 47.57 47.24 41.53 21.47 25.41 489.69

S.R. 2.33 0.67 0.71 2.20 24.69 33.55 32.94 24.87 18.26 21.03 32.21 24.46 217.92

SS & SR TOTAL 45.68 46.02 52.26 54.79 65.14 66.58 73.09 72.44 65.50 62.56 53.68 49.87 707.61

S.S. 57.70 47.45 56.47 60.50 56.11 51.21 55.95 63.48 58.72 37.58 34.83 38.61 618.61

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.60 1.81 14.47 22.24 23.47 12.37 5.29 18.70 21.20 9.42 129.57

SS & SR TOTAL 57.70 47.45 57.07 62.31 70.58 73.45 79.42 75.85 64.01 56.28 56.03 48.03 748.182
0

0
7

2
0

0
7

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
0

2
0

0
9

2
0

0
9

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
8

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
7

DIFFERENCE
5.72 5.98 -8.89 -16.11 -20.45 -15.81 -2.43

(Current YR - Previous YR)

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
8

-49.57

2018

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

2.80 -13.31 -33.76 -52.00

Difference by Time Period

(Current Period - Previous 

Period)

5.72 11.69

100



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

2018

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

S.S. 50.81 49.10 48.82 49.65 60.58 65.65 56.12 59.67 52.49 42.86 34.46 42.75 612.96

S.R. 0.00 0.78 0.00 0.62 0.74 2.56 23.58 20.72 20.17 23.88 26.46 13.63 133.14

SS & SR TOTAL 50.81 49.88 48.82 50.27 61.32 68.21 79.70 80.39 72.66 66.74 60.92 56.38 746.10

S.S. 50.05 46.16 51.09 55.01 65.70 68.81 80.52 61.60 48.71 47.08 40.83 36.70 652.26

S.R. 0.00 0.62 0.93 0.76 0.76 0.73 1.64 17.32 20.25 21.69 16.92 7.36 88.98

SS & SR TOTAL 50.05 46.78 52.02 55.77 66.46 69.54 82.16 78.92 68.96 68.77 57.75 44.06 741.24

S.S. 55.83 51.40 58.56 64.33 67.98 52.62 47.04 39.68 41.06 34.80 49.30 49.92 612.52

S.R. 0.00 0.61 1.17 4.84 8.68 22.08 30.80 36.30 27.32 24.95 1.73 1.63 160.11

SS & SR TOTAL 55.83 52.01 59.73 69.17 76.66 74.70 77.84 75.98 68.38 59.75 51.03 51.55 772.63

S.S. 52.73 49.97 57.35 58.32 62.82 68.22 65.05 63.34 58.91 67.08 56.20 48.84 708.83

S.R. 0.70 1.11 0.48 0.94 1.84 5.63 19.77 22.04 16.00 6.58 3.12 5.84 84.05

SS & SR TOTAL 53.43 51.08 57.83 59.26 64.66 73.85 84.82 85.38 74.91 73.66 59.32 54.68 792.88

S.S. 54.43 52.23 60.70 65.43 60.75 55.13 66.79 73.35 66.59 62.03 56.36 53.98 727.77

S.R. 1.28 1.27 1.10 1.11 14.82 22.79 19.54 9.67 3.52 4.02 2.04 0.55 81.71

SS & SR TOTAL 55.71 53.50 61.80 66.54 75.57 77.92 86.33 83.02 70.11 66.05 58.40 54.53 809.48

S.S. 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 78.50 53.45 56.21 48.16 52.29 745.25

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5.78 21.08 16.87 8.06 0.89 52.68

SS & SR TOTAL 56.16 48.05 55.92 60.69 73.30 77.51 85.01 84.28 74.53 73.08 56.22 53.18 797.93

S.S. 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 50.43 55.27 65.40 70.84 73.60 85.00 84.68 73.30 65.60 58.49 59.80 798.82

S.S. 56.40 45.26 52.16 57.40 70.43 71.35 85.41 82.68 69.45 68.04 57.78 57.69 774.05

S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.02 0.07 0.01 0.02 0.32 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.53

SS & SR TOTAL 56.41 45.27 52.17 57.44 70.45 71.42 85.42 82.70 69.77 68.06 57.78 57.69 774.58

S.S. 44.39 46.36 47.00 50.53 56.43 63.43 77.75 80.30 68.35 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.31

S.R. 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.01 0.09 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.16

SS & SR TOTAL 44.40 46.37 47.01 50.54 56.43 63.44 77.76 80.39 68.36 66.58 54.06 52.13 707.47

S.S. 50.61 49.20 65.66 68.65 76.18 79.14 82.31 57.02 37.32 27.50 38.96 45.96 678.51

S.R. 0.02 0.08 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38 25.92 31.54 36.85 12.41 0.01 107.29

SS & SR TOTAL 50.63 49.28 65.68 68.67 76.20 79.16 82.69 82.94 68.86 64.35 51.37 45.97 785.80

S.S. 46.66 43.40 47.39 56.95 66.18 70.83 75.70 77.27 68.23 65.58 50.37 49.43 717.99

S.R. 0.01 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.26

SS & SR TOTAL 46.67 43.43 47.42 56.98 66.21 70.84 75.73 77.29 68.24 65.60 50.39 49.45 718.25

S.S. 41.30 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 675.94

S.R. 1.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.90

SS & SR TOTAL 43.20 41.10 47.10 52.14 53.50 59.00 74.70 74.10 65.40 64.70 55.30 47.60 677.84

S.S. 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.60 63.40 69.30 47.80 31.70 30.80 28.20 26.00 538.00

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 25.00 30.20 27.70 21.20 19.90 124.10

SS & SR TOTAL 47.00 38.60 48.60 52.00 54.70 63.40 69.30 72.80 61.90 58.50 49.40 45.90 662.10

S.S. 50.10 45.70 52.60 56.30 68.30 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 690.50

S.R. 0.50 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90

SS & SR TOTAL 50.60 46.00 52.60 56.30 68.40 68.80 68.10 69.80 59.80 56.10 51.40 43.50 691.40

1
9

9
5

1
9

9
5

1
9

9
4

1
9

9
4

1
9

9
3

1
9

9
3

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
8

1
9

9
7

1
9

9
7

1
9

9
6

1
9

9
6

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
1

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

1
9

9
9

1
9

9
9

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
2

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
5

101



YEAR SOURCE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
ANNUAL 

TOTAL
YEAR

2018

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GROSS WATER PRODUCTION, BY SOURCE

REPORTED IN ACRE-FEET

S.S. 45.30 42.20 45.90 55.20 64.00 58.10 44.90 41.80 35.00 32.80 34.00 43.10 542.30

S.R. 0.80 0.30 0.10 0.40 0.50 6.10 22.70 28.10 26.30 25.10 19.50 5.50 135.40

SS & SR TOTAL 46.10 42.50 46.00 55.60 64.50 64.20 67.60 69.90 61.30 57.90 53.50 48.60 677.70

S.S. 26.90 23.10 32.70 39.60 48.60 44.10 40.10 34.80 30.50 28.00 26.40 30.10 404.90

S.R. 15.30 13.10 0.50 0.10 0.10 5.50 15.00 21.60 20.20 21.00 19.70 18.70 150.80

SS & SR TOTAL 42.20 36.20 33.20 39.70 48.70 49.60 55.10 56.40 50.70 49.00 46.10 48.80 555.70

S.S. 45.70 47.00 55.28 44.75 31.46 32.34 40.00 38.00 31.91 31.40 29.40 29.90 457.14

S.R. 8.70 0.80 0.50 18.03 32.30 26.79 22.30 22.20 20.64 20.20 19.30 14.90 206.66

SS & SR TOTAL 54.40 47.80 55.78 62.78 63.76 59.13 62.30 60.20 52.55 51.60 48.70 44.80 663.80

S.S. 51.00 47.90 53.90 61.90 57.20 62.20 69.20 60.90 36.30 38.70 42.60 40.60 622.40

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 13.80 13.50 17.90 28.00 42.00 22.60 17.60 18.20 174.60

SS & SR TOTAL 51.00 47.90 53.90 62.90 71.00 75.70 87.10 88.90 78.30 61.30 60.20 58.80 797.00

S.S. 51.20 57.90 63.20 47.30 57.40 44.20 50.00 51.70 41.90 37.40 27.40 36.00 565.60

S.R. 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.30 15.70 30.70 31.20 34.90 36.00 34.90 35.20 19.00 253.90

SS & SR TOTAL 51.20 57.90 63.20 63.60 73.10 74.90 81.20 86.60 77.90 72.30 62.60 55.00 819.50

1
9

8
9

1
9

8
9

1
9

8
8

1
9

8
8

1
9

9
2

1
9

9
2

1
9

9
1

1
9

9
1

1
9

9
0

1
9

9
0

102



Cambria Community 
Services District

Regular Board Meeting
August 23, 2018 

103



Wastewater Department
A welder replaced the hand rails on the stairs and fixed a few holes. This wasn’t apart of the 

contract and needed to be done. The total cost for the additional work was $4,175.

Before After

104



This was a large hole that was allowing air to escape. The department had several holes like this covered up.

105



The handrails have been completed at the center ring catwalk areas of the sludge digesters. The orange 
colored railings in the foreground were replaced last fiscal year. 

106



This is the new Ditch Witch vacuum excavator. This machine will be very helpful in repairing leaks as well as in 
emptying valve cans so we can operate and exercise valves.

Water Department
107



Facilities & Resources Department
Bluff Trail Project 

108



Cambria 
Community 
Services District

Wastewater 
and 

Water 
Department 

Infrastructure 
Projects 

2015-2018

109



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2015

New controls & new pump assembly on lift station B

110



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
April 2015

New generator installed at the Moonstone Beach lift station

111



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015
Rebuilt clarifier

112



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Incorporated an anoxic zone and reduced nitrate levels from 30-40 P.P.M. 
to 1.0 P.P.M. or less

113



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

SCADA controls return activated sludge pumps

114



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements December 
2015

Installed motion

115



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Auto motion

116



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Put digester into proper operational status. It had never been 
cleaned

117



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Cleaned digester and repaired lines

118



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Rebuilt filtronics & iron removal water plant completely 
automated system

119



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Enhanced effluent quality

120



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015
Rebuilt blower

121



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2015

Repaired the smaller blower

122



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
June 2016

Improved Operational Efficiencies – Removed sludge from the plant and 
made arrangements to have the sludge removed as it’s produced

123



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
June 2016

Staff replaced the degraded hand rails

124



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

Replaced the bypass valve at the grit chamber

125



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

After the bypass valve was replaced they cleaned the lines

126



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

After the bypass valve was replaced, they installed new asphalt. This was a 
major undertaking

127



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

The department emptied the flow effluent equalization ponds and 
pumped sludge to the digesters 

128



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

Completed SCADA upgrades

129



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

SCADA upgrades for pump controls

130



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

Installed variable frequency drives

131



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

Fixed both effluent pumps and variable frequency drives. Pumps replaced and 
fully automated

132



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

The flow effluent equalization ponds were emptied and cleaned

133



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016

Replaced the Fiscalini Tank

134



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
August 2016 through October 2016

The fences along the perimeter of the plant were repaired

August 2016 October 2016

135



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
September 2016

Replaced the Fiscalini Tank

136



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
September 2016

Installed new controls at lift station B4

137



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
September 2016

Completely rebuilt SR4 well and fully automated with fail safe capability. They 
also painted the SR4 building

138



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
September 2016

They painted the SR4 well tanks

139



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
October 2016

Improvements to the control panels
before and after pictures 

140



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
October 2016

At least 45 manholes have been repaired and replaced
Twenty manhole inserts have been installed, thus reducing intrusion and 

infiltration
This hole represents 5 gallons 

per
minute of flow 

or 
7200 gallons per day

from one mahole

141



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
October 2016

The staff identified manholes that needed access

142



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
November 2016

The 2” abandoned pipe on Pineridge was repaired on November 2, 2016
Ongoing repairs to the distribution system continue

143



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
November 2016

New SCADA and Programming was installed

144



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
November 2016

Both drive motors were replaced for clarifiers  1 and 2
Both waste activated sludge pumps were replaced

145



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
November 2016

New handrails were installed

146



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2016

Sludge was collected in the new trailer and the digestors are functioning properly 
for the first time in many years

It also reduced plant odor

147



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2016

The old lift station panel 9 was replaced

148



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2016

All handrails have been completely painted

149



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2016

Lift station 8 went live on SCADA and they are continuing upgrades to the lift 
stations

150



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2017

VFD’s are on both effluent pumps and they are programmed to handle 
flow direct from the clarifiers

151



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2017

The generator block heater was replaced and they serviced all of the above ground 
generators

152



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2017

Effluent pump #1 had a new discharge and was rebuilt
Both pumps had new 95% efficient motors installed

The old Miltonic’s level control along with the rusted control panels was replaced 
with a transducer and a small junction box

153



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2017

The rotating assembly was replaced in the pump that used to send sludge 

from the south tank to the north tank 

We had replacement motors in stock for all motors on the screw press

The Allen Bradly controls have been backed up for the screw press and the 
VFD was replaced

An extension for the discharge was installed on the screw press to allow the 
filling of the trailers

The trailers are now picked up when full

The plant doesn’t stockpile the sludge

154



The aeration basin recirculation pumps were hard lined in

New davit cranes were installed to remove both RAS and WAS pumps

The hand rails on both the aeration basin and the clarifiers have been painted with a 25 year two part 

epoxy

The stairs and supports have been painted

RAS flow meter has been replaced and the second flow meter was installed

Both RAS and WAS are now controlled with SCADA

WAS pump #2 has been replaced along with the VFD

Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2017

155



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
March 2017

Blower #4 has been installed and the bearings on the two blowers have been 
replaced

The alarms have also been connected to SCADA

156



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
May 2017

Staff has continued to fix leaks

This leak was fixed at Kent Street (behind the Shell station) This leak was fixed at Kent Street (behind the Shell station)

157



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
May 2017

Twenty five new PamRex water proof manhole covers were replaced on the 
25 most needed manhole lids in the collection system

158



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
May 2017

Staff replaced old valves

159



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
May 2017

Lift station 9 was approved for an electrical upgrade

The SCDA panel was moved to a safer location above ground and replaced with 
efficient controls

160



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
June 2017

The department was unable to remove this welded manhole cover, so they 
replaced it with a water tight cover

161



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
June 2017

Staff replaced the digester walkways

162



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
June 2017

The lid was not attached to the lift station and the rings broke off, making it 
inaccessible

The department installed a new water tight lid

163



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

Both lids are in a wetland and were weeping water months after the rains stopped
They both have 4 holes in the top that allow water into the system with the smallest of rains

Manholes like this are big contributors to the heavy flows during winter rains
These are also very hard to access due to the wet ground

Now that we have a new lid and ring we will remove the tree that is working its way into the manhole.

164



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

During heavy rains the manhole was underwater and not sealed
A water tight lid and ring was installed 

165



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

A new panel was installed and is being used as a pull box
All the breakers are now in the panel, outside the pump house

Before After

166



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

The first suction line was replaced at lift station B-3

167



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

This is a section of the suction line that failed
FRM was the contractor that installed the stainless steel suction line at the lift station

CCSD staff replaced the 4 inch cast iron piping with PVC
Holes had to be bored around the old piping to remove it

168



The new electrical panel that was installed 
outside the pump house with SCADA

Staff can track this lift station from the 
WWTP or any remote location

This is accessible to the operator without the need of entering the 
pump house

This removed the old out-of- date electronics and replaced them with 
state of the art communications

This lift station was the first to have remote SCADA controls added 
along with backup controls for redundancy

In the future, all lift stations will be brought to this level of 
communication and capabilities

Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

169



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

The new clarifier drive was installed by FRM
Before and after pictures 

170



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

The new suction line was installed

171



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
July 2017

The lift station 8 guide rails were replaced with stainless guide rails

172



Water Department Improvements 
July 2017

This is manhole cover was lifted 8 inches and the lid was replaced

173



Water Department Improvements 
October 2017

Work was done in the alley that runs parallel with Burton Drive

174



Water Department Improvements 
October 2017

A leak was repaired on the Pembrook

175



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
November 2017

United Rentals delivered the new 6 inch pump and staff installed and tested it

176



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
November 2017

West Coast Trees cut down three pine trees at the WWTP and spread the chips 
around the plant entrance

177



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2017

The pressure relief value was purchased and used on the non-potable water 
system

178



Wastewater Treatment & Collection System Plant Improvements 
December 2017

This is a snapshot of the GIS map for the collection system
The program was added to the collection system

The department can step onto a manhole and find out what needs to be done and what has been done over 
the last year

179



Water Department - Stuart Street Tank Project
January 2018

Superior Tank removed the most severely corroded roofing in January 2018
After removal of the roof and rust scale, it was determined that 3 shell panels were too far gone to bolt to 
Everyone agreed that changing the contract to add the replacement of those shell panels would increase 

the likelihood that this tank can stay in service for the desired five more years
The cost and schedule to change out the panels while Superior was on site, with the adjacent roof off, is 

significantly lower than having them come back later

180



Water Department - Stuart Street Tank Project
January 2018

181



Water Department - Stuart Street Tank Project
January 2018

182



Water Department – Stuart Street Tank Project
January 2018

183



Water Department Improvements
January 2018

The water that goes through the regulator is for the chlorine analyzer and the 
turbidimeter for the entire SS wellfield

This pressure regulator is located at SS3

184



Public Records Requests and Responses 
 

There were 4 Public Record Requests received since July 26, 2018 by the following citizens. The listing 
below is representative of the request and does not necessarily reflect the extensive nature of each 
request.  

8/2/2018: Brad Clark 1. Copy of CCSD “retrofit inspection records” for the last 2 inspections for each 
residence a. 930 Hartford Drive, Cambria b. 5525 Sunbury Avenue, Cambria. 

On August 8, 2018, the CCSD responded to Brad Clark’s 8/2/2018 Public Records Request with the 
following:  

Enclosed is the retrofit inspection records for 930 Hartford Drive and 5525 Sunbury Avenue in Cambria. 

8/13/2018: Matthew Schultz 1. For all the retired, full time Village of Cambria employees who received 
pension benefits for the entire 12-month period ending 12/31/2017: 1. Name, 2. Date retired, 3. Age at 
retirement, 4. Employee’s lifetime contributions to the pension fund, 5. Current pension amount, 6. 
Total pension benefits paid to retiree to date. 

On August 14, 2018, the CCSD responded to Matthew Schultz’s 8/13/2018 Public Records Request with 
the following:  

There are no documents responsive to your request. 

8/13/2018: Unknown Caller 1. Water and sewer rates for 2015. 

8/16/2018: Will Holiday 1. I am requesting a copy of Cambria Community Services District's Employee 
Compensation Report for the 2017 calendar year under the provisions of California Govt. Code §§ 6250 - 
6270, the California Public Records Act.  
 
The purpose of this request is to obtain records which provide a complete and comprehensive account 
of Cambria Community Services District's total costs associated with employee compensation. 
Specifically, this request seeks an accounting of total gross wages paid to each employee and the total 
cost incurred by the employer for providing retirement and health benefits. To standardize how this 
information is reported, please include the following categories in your response: 

o Employee Name  
o Position/Job Title  
o Annual Salary Minimum & Maximum  
o Total Regular Pay 
o Overtime Pay  
o Other Pay (any additional forms of pay that are not reported in Regular Pay)  
o Total Retirement & Health Cost (All forms of employer-paid retirement contributions, deferred 

compensation and health benefits). Please provide the full retirement cost incurred by Cambria 
Community Services District for each employee, not merely the “normal cost” portion. 

 

185



Free Chipping for Cambria Residents! 
      Reduce your fire risk by reducing combustible vegetation around your property. 

Be Ready for Chippers by 15 September 2018 
 

Sign up now for free chipping during the Fall FireSafe Community Cleanup and Chipping Event, 
Gather up your material for chipping by, September. 15. 
SLO County Fire Safe Council contracted crews, with support from Cambria Fire, Cambria 
CERT and Cambria FireSafe Focus Group will chip vegetation on your property, helping to make 
your home and the community safer. This is a free event for Cambria Residents. 
 
Please complete the form below and return it to the Cambria Fire Station, 2850 Burton Drive, 
no later than SEP 14 to pick up your flagging tape. Call (805) 927-6240 for more information. 
Thank You! 
 
Criteria: 

 Material must be less than 5 inches in diameter and no longer than 7 feet. 

 Material must be marked with red flagging tape (provided at the Fire Department) and 
placed at the curb by Sep 15. 

 Only limbs and like material may be chipped. No grass, leaves, pine needles, sawed 
lumber or building materials. 

 All chipped material will be blown back curbside.  Please identify with signs or tarps a 
spot different from the original pile. 

 Sorry, we cannot schedule a precise time for arrival. 
 

--------------------------------------------------------Cut Here----------------------------------------------------------- 
 

SIGN UP for 2018 FireSafe Community Cleanup and Chipping Event 
 

 
Name_________________________________________Phone_________________________ 
 
 
Email_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Address_________________________________CrossStreet__________________________ 
 
 
Property Owner Signature_______________________________________(I understand Criteria) 

186



  S.R. 8.B. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING-AUGUST 23, 2018 

FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JULY 2018  

The Expenditure Report for the month of July, 2018 is being submitted to the CCSD Board of 

Directors in today’s meeting (Agenda Item 4 A).  A summary by department of the Accounts 

Payable Vendor Expenditures has been added.  Because the great majority of the payroll costs 

are not shown by department, but rather are posted to liability clearing accounts, a summary of 

payroll costs is not useful.  For future Board of Director’s meetings, monthly reports detailing the 

Personnel Services Costs by department and account can be provided.  Due to the need to 

focus efforts on the Final Budget for 2018/2019, there was not sufficient time to prepare the 

reports. 

 

FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2018/2019 FINAL BUDGET AND FY 2017/2018 ACTIVITY 

The Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Final Budget is being submitted to the CCSD Board of Directors for 

review, discussion and approval in today’s meeting (Agenda Item 5 A).  The column titled 

“ESTIMATED FY 2017/2018” gives the results of the 2017/2018 fiscal year as they currently 

stand.  The amounts have not been audited and not all activity has been reviewed, so the 

amounts may not be final, but there are not currently any adjustments that are known to be 

needed. 

 

AVAILABLE CASH BALANCES AS OF JULY 31, 2018  

The total available cash, defined as the balance in the Main Checking Account less outstanding 

checks plus the balance in the Money Market Account plus the balance in the Local Agency 

Investment Fund (LAIF), as of July 31, 2018 was $1,711,642.  It should be noted that this does 

not include the balances in the Payroll, HRA and Veteran’s Hall bank accounts as these are 

restricted funds.  However, these account balance were included in the June 30, 2018 reported 

cash balance as the balance as of June 30, 2018 was being compared to audited balances of 

prior years that included these accounts.   

187


	Meeting Agenda



